
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, January 23, 2017 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 

Union Sanitary District
Administration Building

5072 Benson Road
Union City, CA 94587

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
1. Call to Order. 

 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
  

 

3. Roll Call. 
 

 

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of January 9, 2017. 
   

Information 5. Monthly Operations Report for November 2016 (to be reviewed by the Budget & 
Finance and Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
   

 6. Written Communications. 
 

 

7. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address 
and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda item, the 
speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30 
minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 

 

 

 

Presentation 8. Presentation by East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) General Manager Mike 
Connor. 
 

 

Motion 9. Determine Date for Centennial Open House Event and Consider Options for Board 
Involvement in Event Planning.  
 

 

Motion 10. Consider March 29, 2016, Claims Filed by Maria Del Carmen Bibiano and Fernando 
Trujillo for Asserted Losses Associated with Traffic Accident (to be reviewed by the 
Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Motion 11. Consider a Resolution of Application to LAFCO for Annexation No. U-293, Dumbarton 
Quarry Regional Park in the City of Fremont (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community 
Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Page 1 of 151



Motion 12. Award the Construction Contract for the Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves 
Project to TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. (to be reviewed by the Engineering and 
Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Motion 13. Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with 
Carollo Engineers for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project (to be reviewed 
by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Motion 14. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No.2 with West Yost Associates 
for the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project – Phase 1 (to be reviewed by the 
Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Information 15. Check Register. 
 

 

Information 16. Collection Services Preventative Maintenance Evaluation Report (to be reviewed by 
the Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Information 17. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Budget & Finance Committee – Thursday, January 19, 2017, at 12:30 p.m.  

Director Handley and Director Lathi 
b. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – Friday, January 20, 2017, at 9:30 a.m. 

Director Kite and Director Toy  
c. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Friday, January 20, 2017, at 2:00 p.m. 

Director Handley and Director Lathi 
d. Audit Committee – will not meet. 
e. Legislative Committee – will not meet. 
f. Personnel Committee – will not meet. 
g. Ad Hoc Subcommittee for Communications Strategy. 
 

 

Information  18.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 
 

 

 19.   Other Business: 
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 

business and are welcome to request information from staff. 
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 

 

 20. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Board Workshop in the Boardroom on 
Tuesday, January 31, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 

 21. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, February 13, 2017, at 7:00 p.m. 
 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 
District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 
the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

Page 2 of 151



BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
Committee Members: Director Handley and Director Lathi

AGENDA
Thursday, January 19, 2017

12:30 P.M.

Alvarado Conference Room
5072 Benson Road

Union City, CA 94587

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

Karen W. Murphy
Attorney

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Public Comment

4. Items to be reviewed for the Board meeting of January 23, 2017:
Monthly Operations Report for November 2016 – Financial Reports.

5. Adjournment

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting. No action will be taken at committee meetings.

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary
District at least one working day prior to the meeting).

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered. If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda,
the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment” is calendared. Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.
Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item.

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible. Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510)
477 7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

Page 3 of 151



ENGINEERING & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
COMMITTEE MEETING

Committee Members: Director Kite and Director Toy

AGENDA
Friday, January 20, 2017

9:30 A.M.

Alvarado Conference Room
5072 Benson Road

Union City, CA 94587

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

Karen W. Murphy
Attorney

THIS MEETING WILL BE TELECONFERENCED WITH DIRECTOR KITE FROM THE EXTERIOR OF
35040 NEWARK BOULEVARD, NEWARK, CALIFORNIA.

THE TELECONFERENCE LOCATION SHALL BE ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC.

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Public Comment

4. Items to be reviewed for the Board meeting of January 23, 2017:
Award the Construction Contract for the Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves
Project to TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.
Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with
Carollo Engineers for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project.
Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No.2 with West Yost Associates
for the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project – Phase 1.
Collection Services Preventative Maintenance Evaluation Report.

5. Adjournment

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting. No action will be taken at committee meetings. The Public may provide
oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary District at least one working
day prior to the meeting).If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered. If the subject is within the Board’s
jurisdiction but not on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment” is calendared. Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum
of 30 minutes per subject. Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item.

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible. Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510)
477 7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

Page 4 of 151



LEGAL/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MEETING
Committee Members: Director Handley and Director Lathi

AGENDA
Friday, January 20, 2017

2:00 P.M.

Alvarado Conference Room
5072 Benson Road

Union City, CA 94587

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

Karen W. Murphy
Attorney

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Public Comment

4. Items to be reviewed for the Board meeting of January 23, 2017:
Monthly Operations Report for November 2016 – Odor Report and Work Group
Reports.
Consider March 29, 2016, Claims Filed by Maria Del Carmen Bibiano and Fernando
Trujillo for Asserted Losses Associated with Traffic Accident.
Consider a Resolution of Application to LAFCO for Annexation No. U 293, Dumbarton
Quarry Regional Park in the City of Fremont.

5. Adjournment

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting. No action will be taken at committee meetings.

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary
District at least one working day prior to the meeting).

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered. If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda,
the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment” is calendared. Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.
Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item.

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible. Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510)
477 7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

Page 5 of 151



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

January 9, 2017

CALL TO ORDER

President Handley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Tom Handley, President
  Pat Kite, Vice President
  Anjali Lathi, Secretary
  Manny Fernandez, Director
  Jennifer Toy, Director
   
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
  Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager
  Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager
  Pamela Arends-King, Business Services Manager/CFO
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager
  Laurie Brenner, Business Services Coach
  Raymond Chau, Capital Improvement Programs Coach  
  Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary

VISITORS:  Jay Witherspoon, CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DECEMBER 12, 2016

It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Vice President Kite, to approve the Minutes 
of the Meeting of December 12, 2016.  Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF DECEMBER 19, 2016

It was moved by Vice President Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to approve the 
Minutes of the Special Meeting of December 19, 2016.  Motion carried unanimously.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

There were no written communications.

Page 6 of 151



ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

There were no oral communications.

CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO TERMINATE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR
PASEO PADRE SANITARY SEWER LIFT STATION

This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  District Counsel 
Murphy stated the District previously entered into a Maintenance Agreement for the 
Paseo Padre Sanitary Sewer Lift Station with Kaiser Development Company, Ardenwood 
Technology Park Associates I, Ardenwood Forest Venture, and Sutter Hill Limited, the 
owners of 43 lots in Local Improvement District No. 25.  The Agreement provided that the 
costs incurred by the District in constructing the Paseo Padre Lift Station, as well as 
ongoing maintenance, replacement, and repair costs, would be paid by the lot owners.
The Agreement and its obligations run with the land and are applicable to subsequent 
owners.  The Agreement was recently brought to the attention of the District by a 
purchaser of one of the encumbered parcels.  The District collected the construction costs 
for the Lift Station and ongoing operational costs for a short period of time, but did not 
collect any monies under the agreement for at least 20 years.  The District has since 
included all costs associated with maintaining the Lift Station in its Cost of Service 
Analysis, and received the necessary revenue to maintain the station.  Staff 
recommended the Board adopt a resolution to terminate the Maintenance Agreement for 
the Paseo Padre Sanitary Sewer Lift Station.

It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Vice President Kite, to Adopt Resolution 
No. 2795, Approving and Authorizing Execution of a Termination of the Maintenance 
Agreement for Paseo Padre Lift Station.  Motion carried unanimously.

CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT FOR 
TRACT 8158 – DARROW FARM, LOCATED NEAR MISSION BOULEVARD, WEST OF 
INTERSTATE 680, IN THE CITY OF FREMONT

This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated the project developer, Robson Homes, is constructing 24 
residential units for Tract 8158 in the city of Fremont.  Sanitary sewer service to the 
development will be provided by a new sewer main in Emory Terrace and Emory Common 
which will be connected an existing sewer main in an existing sanitary sewer easement 
off of Via San Dimas.  The roadways of the development do not meet the City of Fremont 
street dimensions and structure setback requirements for public streets and were 
designated as private streets.  Robson Homes, LLC has constructed the new sewer main 
and granted the District a sanitary sewer easement that provides for access, 
maintenance, and service of the sewer mains in the private roadways.  Staff 
recommended the Board adopt a resolution to accept the sanitary sewer easement for 
Tract 8158 – Darrow Farm, located near Mission Boulevard, west of Interstate 680, in the 
city of Fremont.

Page 7 of 151



Easements are generally accepted after the project is constructed, following final phase 
of construction.

It was moved by Director Toy, seconded by Secretary Lathi, to Adopt Resolution              
No. 2796, Accepting a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8158 – Darrow Farm, Located 
Near Mission Boulevard West of Interstate 680 in the City of Fremont, California. Motion 
carried unanimously.

CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT FOR 
TRACT 8207 – PALMDALE ESTATES PHASE 1A, LOCATED NEAR MISSION 
BOULEVARD, WEST OF SAINT JOSEPH TERRACE IN THE CITY OF FREMONT

This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated Robson Homes is constructing 15 single-family residential 
units for Phase 1A of Tract 8207 in the city of Fremont.  Robson Homes, LLC has 
constructed new sewer mains within the private streets of the residential development, 
and has granted the District a sanitary sewer easement that provides for access, 
maintenance, and service of the new sewer mains in the private roadways.  Staff 
recommended the Board adopt a resolution to accept a sanitary sewer easement for Tract 
8207 – Palmdale Estates Phase 1A, located on Mission Boulevard west of Saint Joseph 
Terrace in the city of Fremont.

It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Toy, to Adopt Resolution              
No. 2797, Accepting a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8207 – Palmdale Estates 
Phase 1A, Located Near Mission Boulevard West of Saint Joseph Terrace in the City of 
Fremont, California.  Motion carried unanimously.

AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE TASK ORDER NO. 2 WITH 
CAROLLO ENGINEERS FOR THE PLANT SOLIDS SYSTEM/CAPACITY 
ASSESSMENT

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Plant’s influent flows have been steadily 
decreasing while influent total suspended solids have been increasing.  The treatment 
plant is currently rated for a treatment capacity of 33 MGD, which was based on lower 
influent solids concentrations than those currently experienced.  Additionally, regulatory 
requirements to implement nutrient removal and other future projects may impact the 
Plant’s operations and further affect treatment capacity.  Phase 1 of the Project was to 
determine the current capacity of the treatment plant solids system, specifically for the 
removal of conventional pollutants, and also evaluated planning for potential chances in 
the future or treatment process improvements.  Phase 2 of the Project will determine the 
current capacity of the liquids side of the treatment plant unit processes and methods for 
process optimization.  Following completion of Phase 1 and Phase 2, a report will be 
generated to be used as a key component of the Plant Master Plan project that has 
already begun.  Staff recommended the Board authorize the General Manager to execute 

Page 8 of 151



Task Order No. 2 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $279,698 for the Plant Solids 
System/Capacity Assessment.

It was moved by Vice President Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Authorize the 
General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with Carollo Engineers for the Plant Solids 
System/Capacity Assessment. Motion carried unanimously.

AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT AND TASK 
ORDER NO. 1 WITH CH2M HILL ENGINEERS, INC. FOR THE ODOR CONTROL 
ALTERNATIVES STUDY

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain introduced Jay Witherspoon, project manager of 
the Odor Control Alternatives Study from CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc.  Previous odor 
control evaluations focused on technologies similar to existing technology at the District 
and fit within constraints of the existing property.  Staff would like to hire a consultant to 
conduct additional air sampling, develop and run a new odor dispersion model, and focus 
on evaluating alternative odor control technologies not identified in previous odor control 
evaluations.  A Request for Proposals for the Odor Control Alternatives Study was sent 
to seven firms.  A panel consisting of engineering and operations staff reviewed the 
proposals and selected CH2M HILL for the Study due to their proposed team members’ 
relevant experience, qualifications, and approach to the project.  Staff recommended the 
Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 
with CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc. in the amount of $139,801 for the Odor Control 
Alternatives Study.

It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Vice President Kite, to Authorize the 
General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with CH2M HILL 
Engineers, Inc. for the Odor Control Alternatives Study. Motion carried unanimously.

CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
ALVARADO-NILES ROAD SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT FROM 
SAK CONSTRUCTION AND AUTHORIZE RECORDATION OF A NOTICE OF 
COMPLETION

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated television inspections of the Alvarado Basin 
identified portions of the Alvarado-Niles Road trunk sewer as having extensive corrosion 
due to Hydrogen Sulfide.  These sewers were installed in the mid 1960’s using reinforced 
concrete pipe that is highly susceptible to corrosion.  The Project rehabilitated 
approximately 9,200 linear feet of the existing reinforced concrete trunk sewer which runs 
from under the Alvarado-Niles Road Bridge in Fremont to the vicinity of the Alvarado-
Niles Road and Western Avenue intersection in Union City.  The Project also rehabilitated
approximately 125 linear feet of existing cast iron pipe at four locations.  SAK Construction 
substantially completed the Project on October 11, 2016, all punchlist work has been 
completed, and the District has assumed beneficial use of the Project.  Staff

Page 9 of 151



recommended the Board adopt a resolution to accept the construction of the Alvarado-
Niles Road Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project from SAK Construction, and authorize 
recordation of a Notice of Completion.

It was moved by Director Toy, seconded by Vice President Kite, to Adopt Resolution 2798, 
Accepting Construction of the Alvarado-Niles Road Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
Located in the City of Union City, California, from SAK Construction, LLC.  Motion carried 
unanimously.

REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE PRINCIPAL AND FINANCIAL 
ANALYST JOB SERIES

This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Business Services Manager/CFO 
Arends-King stated proposed modifications to the Senior Accountant and Principal 
Financial Analyst positions were evaluated and discussed at the Board workshop held 
December 19, 2016.  A thorough study of the job duties for both positions was completed 
and it was determined the current positions were separate with little to no overlapping or 
sharing of job duties or knowledge.  Staff proposed replacing the existing classification of 
Senior Accountant and Principal Financial Analyst with a new Accounting and Financial 
Analyst series.  The new series would include the following three new positions:  
Accounting and Financial Analyst I and II and Senior Accounting and Financial Analyst.  
The Senior Accountant and Financial Analyst position would be filled, and either the 
Accounting and Financial Analyst I or II would be filled depending upon the qualifications 
of the candidate pool.  Staff recommended the Board consider approval of the Accounting 
and Financial Analyst job series and salary range.

It was moved by Vice President Kite, seconded by Director Toy, to Approve the 
Accounting and Financial Analyst Job Series and Salary Range.  Motion carried 
unanimously.

REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REVISED CLASS DESCRIPTION AND 
SALARY FOR THE POSITION OF ASSISTANT TO THE GENERAL 
MANAGER/BOARD SECRETARY

This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Human Resources Manager 
Tolbert presented a desk item showing the redline of proposed changes to the existing 
job description for the Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary, and stated the 
desk item would be added to the Board meeting packet.  The current Assistant to the 
General Manager/Board Secretary class description was modified to add the duties of 
overseeing the District records management program and records retention schedules, 
and maintain associated policies and documents as well as updated to clarify existing 
duties and responsibilities.  It was proposed that the classification title change to 
Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk.  Based upon a salary survey 
and the additional duties, a salary adjustment increase was recommended.  The 
proposed changes were presented for discussion at the Board workshop held      
December 19, 2016.  Staff recommended the Board consider approving proposed 

Page 10 of 151



revisions to the Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary class description and 
salary.

It was moved by Director Toy, seconded by Vice President Kite, to Approve Revisions to 
the Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary Class Description and Salary.
Motion carried unanimously.

REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REVISED AND CURRENT PUBLICLY 
AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULES

This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Human Resources Manager 
Tolbert stated CalPERS conducts random audits to ensure compliance with rules and 
regulations.  CalPERS conducted an audit for the fiscal periods of July 1, 2011 through 
June 30, 2014.  A final report was issued, and staff have been working with CalPERS to 
resolve the audit findings.  Staff recommended the Board approve and sign the revised 
and current Publicly Available Pay Schedules presented in the Board meeting packet.

It was moved by Vice President Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Approve and 
Sign the Revised and Current Publicly Available Pay Schedules.  Motion carried 
unanimously.

INFORMATION ITEMS:

Check Register
All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.

Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Meeting of                    
December 15, 2016
Director Toy provided an overview of the report included in the Board Meeting Packet.

COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS:
The Legal/Community Affairs and Engineering and Information Technology Committee 
meetings were canceled due to a lack of quorum, and individual briefings were conducted.  
The Personnel Committee met. 

A Board Workshop to review the proposed Ad Hoc Communications Strategy has been 
scheduled for January 31, 2017.

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:
General Manager Eldredge reported the following:

The recent wet weather storms did not overload the Plant; the highest reported 
flow was 46 MGD.
Staff will prepare an item to be presented at the next Board meeting to discuss 
dates for the 2018 Centennial Open House.  Vice President Kite requested staff 
present options for Board involvement in planning the Centennial Open House.

Page 11 of 151



The General Manager will attend the California Association for Sanitation Agencies 
(CASA) Conference the week of January 17, 2017.    
EBDA General Manager Mike Connor will provide a presentation on the Singapore 
Water Conference he attended at the January 23, 2017, Board meeting.

OTHER BUSINESS:

There was no other business.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting was adjourned at 7:54 p.m. to the next scheduled Regular Board Meeting to 
be held in the Boardroom on Monday, January 23, 2017, at 7:00 p.m.  

SUBMITTED:     ATTEST:

_________________________   __________________________
REGINA McEVOY     ANJALI LATHI  
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY  

APPROVED:

__________________________
TOM HANDLEY
PRESIDENT

Adopted this 23rd day of January, 2017 

Page 12 of 151



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney

DATE: January 17, 2017 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 5 - Meeting of January 23, 2017 
 Information Item:  Monthly Operations Report for November 2016 
  
Background 
 
Attached are Monthly Operations Reports for November 2016.  Staff is available to answer questions 
regarding information contained in the report. 
 
Work Group Managers 
 
General Manager/Administration   Paul Eldredge  GM   
Business Services     Pamela Arends-King BS   
Collection Services     James Schofield  CS   
Technical Support     Sami Ghossain  TS   
Treatment and Disposal Services   Armando Lopez  T&D  
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction  Robert Simonich FMC 
 
 
ODOR COMPLAINTS:   
There was one odor complaint received by Collection Services in November 2016.  The odor was 
reported in Fremont near Gomes Park by a County employee.  District staff inspected the sewer mains 
ACFC channel, and storm drain manholes in the Gomes Park area and no sewer related odor was 
detected.  Staff did note an organic odor emitting from cut grass debris lying along the fence lines near 
the easement path, and reported the findings to the County employee. 
 
There were seven odor complaints received by the Treatment Plant in November 2016, all from the 
same Union City resident.  Details regarding each of the seven complaints were included in the Board 
meeting packet. 
 

Page 13 of 151



SAFETY:  
We had a recordable injury where an employee twisted their ankle.  The employee was on 
modified duty for a week then returned to full duty. 
The employee with the recordable injury from October started the month on modified duty and 
was then returned to full duty. 
We had 2 near misses.  The first was water getting into electrical control panels outside the 
headworks. The equipment had to be replaced.  The second near miss an electrical short in the 
gas compressor controls. Short was caused by work completed by an electrician.  
We received a comment on our Safety Blog about the problems controlling the temperature in 
the Admin building. Collections is looking for solutions to improve the situation. 
We completed the physicals for our 35 commercial drivers. We are looking into options for 
future medical exams to improve privacy during the exams. 
We received and installed 6 new AEDs.  We now have 8 available if needed. 

 
STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
 
Other Completed Recruitments:  

Recruitment for the Senior Accountant position was completed, but a candidate was not 
selected. 

 
Other Accomplishments: 

The Leadership Training Team completed the “Team Building” training module for Leadership 
School. 
Sent out notices for Open Enrollment for FSA, Dental, and Voluntary Life. 
 

 
G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of November, the GM was involved in the following: 
 

Met with the Ad Hoc Subcommittee for Communications Strategy. 
Attended the EBDA Managers Advisory Committee and EBDA Commission meetings. 

 
 
Attachments: Odor Report and Map 

Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group 
  Financial Reports 
  Business Services 
  Technical Services 
  Collection Services 
  Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction 
  Treatment and Disposal Services 

Page 14 of 151



ODOR REPORT 
November 2016 

Collection Services 
During the recording period from November 01, 2016 through November 30, 2016, there was one  
odor related service request received by Collection Services. 

City:  Fremont 
1. Complaint Details: 

Date: 11/4/2016 Time:   2:30 pm 
Location:  VALDEZ PL Reported By: Greg Hilst, County Inspector 
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed:  5 mph 
Temperature:  66 Degrees F Weather: Overcast 

Response and Follow-up:
We inspected USD sewer mains, manholes and risers. We also inspected ACFC channel and  
storm drain manholes in the Gomes Park area. We found no detectable signs of any odors  
emanating from these areas. We did find an odor of organic nature which was coming from cut  
grassy debris lying along the fence lines along an easement path. We left a message on Greg  
Hilst's telephone recorder at 10:00 pm of our findings and told him to call back should he have  
any questions. 

Treatment Plant (Union City) 

During the recording period from November 01, 2016 through November 30, 2016, there were  
seven odor related service requests received by the Treatment Plant. 

1. Complaint Details: 

Date: 11/4/2016 Time:   6:00 pm 
Location: MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): East Wind Speed:  < 2 mph 
Temperature:  67 Degrees F Weather: Cloudy 
Tide Information: 

High Tide Reading:  5.5 Ft/Time Low Tide Reading:  0.1 Ft/Time 
High Tide Time:  3:33 PM Low Tide Time:  11:46 PM 

Response and Follow-up:
USD Staff dispatched to complaint location? Yes  
Were any odors detected at the complaint location?  No

If yes, was odor attributed to USD?  N/A 
Were any odors detected at the Plant?  Yes 

If yes, what odors were found?  Operator investigate Plant and a slight odor was detected at  
the rag bin.  Odor was only noticeable within a 15 foot radius. Odor counteractant was  
applied as a precaution. 

Additional Information:  None

Page 15 of 151



2. Complaint Details: 

Date: 11/9/2016 Time:  12:25 pm 
Location: MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): East Wind Speed:  5 mph 
Temperature:  61 Degrees F Weather: Sunny 
Tide Information: 

High Tide Reading:  7.7 Ft/Time Low Tide Reading:  2.1 Ft/Time 
High Tide Time:  8:17 AM Low Tide Time:  2:28 PM 

Response and Follow-up:
USD Staff dispatched to complaint location? Yes  
Were any odors detected at the complaint location?  No

If yes, was odor attributed to USD?  N/A 
Were any odors detected at the Plant?  Yes 

If yes, what odors were found?  Operator investigated the Plant and detected a slight odor  
at the rag bin.  Odor was only noticeable within a 15 foot radius of the bin.  Odor  
counteractant applied as a precaution.  Mild odor detected around secondary. Operator  
insured the PIIAN (misting) system was functioning properly. 

Additional Information:  None 

3. Complaint Details: 

Date: 11/10/2016 Time:   6:35 pm 
Location: MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): NE Wind Speed:  0 mph 
Temperature:  67 Degrees F Weather: Cloudy 
Tide Information: 

High Tide Reading:  5.1 Ft/Time Low Tide Reading:  0.2 Ft/Time 
High Tide Time:  9:07 PM Low Tide Time:  4:15 AM 

Response and Follow-up:
USD Staff dispatched to complaint location? No  
Were any odors detected at the complaint location?  N/A 

If yes, was odor attributed to USD?  N/A 
Were any odors detected at the Plant?  Yes 

If yes, what odors were found?  Odor detected was not attributed to the Plant. Operator  
detected odors from the adjacent field with the animal enclosures. 

Additional Information:  None 

4. Complaint Details: 

Date: 11/11/2016 Time:  11:45 am 
Location: MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): Southeast Wind Speed:  < 4 mph 
Temperature:  67 Degrees F Weather: Cloudy 
Tide Information: 

High Tide Reading:  6.7 Ft/Time Low Tide Reading:  0.5 Ft/Time 
High Tide Time:  9:04 AM Low Tide Time:  3:25 PM 

Response and Follow-up:
USD Staff dispatched to complaint location? Yes  
Were any odors detected at the complaint location?  Yes 

If yes, was odor attributed to USD?  No - TPO Coach met with the resident at the site and  
detected a vegetation smell. 

Were any odors detected at the Plant?  No

Page 16 of 151



If yes, what odors were found?  N/A 
Additional Information:  Operators checked odor control system and didn’t find any problems.

5. Complaint Details: 

Date: 11/15/2016 Time:   3:28 pm 
Location: MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): East Wind Speed:  10 mph 
Temperature:  61 Degrees F Weather: Cloudy 
Tide Information: 

High Tide Reading:  7.2 Ft/Time Low Tide Reading:  -0.4 Ft/Time 
High Tide Time:  12:14 PM Low Tide Time:  10:18 PM 

Response and Follow-up:
USD Staff dispatched to complaint location? No  
Were any odors detected at the complaint location?  N/A 

If yes, was odor attributed to USD?  N/A 
Were any odors detected at the Plant?  No

If yes, what odors were found?  N/A 
Additional Information:  Operators checked odor control system and didn't find any problems.  
Resident reported a bad smell and said he would call back in 15 minutes if it persisted. There  
were no additional calls after TPO Coach informed the resident the system had all been  
checked and was working properly. There were no unusual activities in the plant that would  
cause any odors. 

6. Complaint Details: 

Date: 11/23/2016 Time:   2:56 pm 
Location: MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): East Wind Speed:  7 mph 
Temperature:  60 Degrees F Weather: Cloudy 
Tide Information: 

High Tide Reading:  6.0 Ft/Time Low Tide Reading:  0.4 Ft/Time 
High Tide Time:  8:29 AM Low Tide Time:  4:07 PM 

Response and Follow-up:
USD Staff dispatched to complaint location? Yes  
Were any odors detected at the complaint location?  No

If yes, was odor attributed to USD?  N/A 
Were any odors detected at the Plant?  Yes 

If yes, what odors were found?  Mild odor due to abandoned thickened primary sludge lines  
from construction were found containing sludge and were flushed out. Odor was only  
noticeable within a 15-20 foot radius of the bin. Operators checked odor control system and  
didn't find any problems. 

Additional Information:  Investigated neighborhood near the complaint address and did detect  
a mild secondary smell along Seaport Drive.  Staff verified PIIAN (misting) system was  
functioning properly. 

7. Complaint Details: 

Date: 11/27/2016 Time:   6:00 pm 
Location: MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  8 mph 
Temperature:  52 Degrees F Weather: Partly Cloudy 
Tide Information: 

High Tide Reading:  6.3 Ft/Time Low Tide Reading:  0.0 Ft/Time 
High Tide Time:  10:43 AM Low Tide Time:  6:47 PM 

Page 17 of 151



Response and Follow-up:
USD Staff dispatched to complaint location? No  
Were any odors detected at the complaint location?  N/A 

If yes, was odor attributed to USD?  N/A 
Were any odors detected at the Plant?  Yes 

If yes, what odors were found?  Odor detected was not attributed to the Plant. Operator  
detected odors from the adjacent field with the animal enclosures. Operators checked odor  
control system and didn't find any problems. 

Additional Information:  Resident reported strong odor for about two hours. 

Page 18 of 151



^
#

!

##

!

^^̂

#

#

^

!#̂̂̂

!

^

^

#

#

!

!!####!

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
December 2015 to November 2016

.0 1 2 3 4 50.5
Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: November 2016

Odor Complaints: Dec. 2015 to Oct. 2016
No odor found (4)

Odor found, not related to USD (4)

Odor found, USD resolved (10)

No odor found (8)

#

!

^

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (4)

^ Odor found, USD resolved (0)

1. Odor found, not related to USD

2. No odor found
3. No odor found
4. Odor found, not related to USD
5. Odor found, not related to USD
6. No odor found
7. No odor found
8. Odor found, not related to USD

Page 19 of 151



NOTES
(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.
(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 
(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, 
     Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.
(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves as well as protected time off, of which the District has
     no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours

per week over the course of a year; with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
June 30, 2016 through November 30, 2016

Weeks to Date: 22 out of 52 (42.31%)

15.3 15.0 15.7 15.0 
20.2 

41.8 

22.5 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

Average Annual Sick Leave Used Per Employee to Date 

Target is 47

35.4 34.1 35.1 35.5 35.1 33.0 34.5 

 -

 5.0

 10.0

 15.0

 20.0

 25.0

 30.0

 35.0

 40.0

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

At-Work Hours Per Employee Per Week

Target is 34

Page 20 of 151



Regular         
(1)

Overtime      
(2)

Discretionary 
(3)

Short Term 
Disability

Workers 
Comp 

Sick          
(4)

Average 
Number of 
Employees

At-Work 
Hours Per 
Week Per 
Employee

Annual 
Sick Leave 

Used

GM 2 1,509.50           38.25              35.4 220.00            -              -             30.50             15.3 2 36.1 40.6
BS 22 16,403.25         0.50                 34.1 2,477.08         64.17         -             330.30           15.0 22 35.1 21.4

FMC 23 17,309.08         339.33            35.1 2,498.17         -              71.00         360.75           15.7 22 35.3 52.4
TD 27 20,410.25         520.92            35.5 2,848.53         122.87       16.50         404.85           15.0 25 35.4 49.9
TS 32 24,465.20         52.39              35.1 3,127.05         2.68            -             645.07           20.2 32 34.6 40.8
CS 32 21,943.25         1,120.00         33.0 3,682.39         434.98       -             1,337.71        41.8 31 35.1 55.0

All Groups 138 102,040.53       2,071.39         34.5 14,853.22      624.70       87.50         3,109.18       22.5 134 35.1 44.5

SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE PROGRAM TARGETS ≥34 ≤47
The Sick Leave Incentive Program target goals are 47 or less hours of sick leave per employee annually, and 34 or more hours of at-work time per week per employee. 

NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves, as well as protected time off, of which the District has no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year;  

with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

LEAVE HOURS FY16

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
June 30, 2016 through November 30, 2016

Weeks to Date: 22 out of 52 (42.31%)

Average Annual Sick 
Leave Used Per 

Employee To Date

AT-WORK HOURS At-Work Hours 
Per Employee 

Per Week

Group Average 
Number of 
Employees

Page 21 of 151



 BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

H:\BusServ\MonthlyOps\2016\November\Financial Summary-5 NovDist Summary

FY 2017       Year-to-date as of 11/30/16 33% of year elapsed
Audited

Revenues % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/16

  Capacity Fees $8,935,000 $2,937,304 33% $7,233,337
  Sewer Service Charges 50,404,690 702,895 1% 50,112,564
  Operating (Work Groups) 1,355,000 634,595 47% 1,233,675
  Interest 475,500 232,818 49% 496,439
  Misc. (LAVWMA pymnt, solar, Cogen rebates) 505,000 244,454 48% 408,913

 Subtotal Revenues $61,675,190 $4,752,066 8% $59,484,928

  SRF Loan Proceeds (Thickener Proj.) 2,800,000 979,464 35% 3,385,590

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds $64,475,190 $5,731,530 9% $62,870,518

Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Program:
       Capacity Proj. $4,342,500 $1,995,170 46% $3,009,426
       Renewal & Repl. Proj. 10,327,500 5,315,209 51% 8,494,486
  Operating 34,714,533 13,495,745 39% 31,895,499
  Special Projects 2,132,098 184,314 9% 707,526
  Retiree Medical (ARC) 583,771 291,886 50% 561,205
  Vehicle & Equipment 662,220 3,310 0% 341,967
  Information Systems 1,232,100 190,806 15% 854,511
  Plant & Pump Stat. R&R 250,000 31,346 13% 272,479
  Emerg. Fund (Sinkhole) 0 285 0% 2,208,595
  Pretreatment Fund 7,000 4,134 59% 29,249
  Cty Fee for SSC Admin. 106,000 0 0% 105,866
  Debt Servicing:
     SRF Loans 3,127,110 2,842,433 91% 3,127,110

Total Expenses $57,484,832 $24,354,637 42% $51,607,919

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses $6,990,358 ($18,623,108) $11,262,599

Operating (Work Group) Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Board of Directors $178,500 $53,798 30% $133,294
General Manager/Admin. 957,678 303,672 32% 884,051
Business Services 5,275,645 1,969,417 37% 4,772,324
Collection Services 6,296,287 2,491,221 40% 5,873,909
Technical Services 5,511,940 2,240,832 41% 5,156,725
Treatment & Disposal Services 10,631,833 4,151,206 39% 9,506,339
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 5,862,650 2,285,598 39% 5,568,856

Total $34,714,533 $13,495,745 39% $31,895,499

Operating (Work Group) Expenses by Type % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) $23,912,246 $9,538,726 40% $22,107,543
Repairs & Maintenance 2,022,630 870,617 43% 1,965,202
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 2,424,140 821,019 34% 2,273,252
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 6,029,045 2,223,035 37% 5,342,319
Fixed Assets 326,472 42,347 13% 207,183

Total $34,714,533 $13,495,745 39% $31,895,499

Page 22 of 151



REVENUES EXPENSES REPORT
as of 11/30/16

8,935,000 

50,404,690 

1,355,000 475,500 505,000 2,800,000 2,937,304 702,895 634,595 232,818 244,454 979,464 
$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service
Charges

  Operating (Work
Groups)

  Interest   Misc. (LAVWMA
pymnt, solar, Cogen

rebates)

  SRF Loan Proceeds
(Thickener Proj.)

Total Revenues 
Budget Actual

4,342,500 

10,327,500 

34,714,533 

2,132,098 
583,771 662,220 1,232,100 250,000 0 

7,000 106,000 

3,127,110 1,995,170 

5,315,209 

13,495,745 

184,314 
291,886 3,310 190,806 31,346 285 4,134 0 

2,842,433 

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

Total Expenses 
Budget Actual

Page 23 of 151



REVENUES EXPENSES REPORT
as of 11/30/16

178,500 
957,678 

5,275,645 

6,296,287 
5,511,940 

10,631,833 

5,862,650 

53,798 
303,672 

1,969,417 
2,491,221 2,240,832 

4,151,206 

2,285,598 

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

Board of Directors General
Manager/Admin.

Business Services Collection
Services

Technical Services Treatment &
Disposal Services

Fabrication,
Maint. &

Construction

Operating Expenses by Work Group 
Budget Actual

23,912,246 

2,022,630 2,424,140 

6,029,045 

326,472 

9,538,726 

870,617 821,019 
2,223,035 

42,347 
$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Supplies & Matls
(chemicals, small tools)

Outside Services
(utilities, biosolids, legal)

Fixed Assets

Operating Expenses by Type 
Budget Actual

Page 24 of 151



 
 

 
 
 

Recruitment for Lead Collection System Worker was completed; Franck Couto and Marco Lopez were 
promoted on 10/29/2016. 
Successful completion of planned (and unplanned) District Safety & and other Specialized Training 
The Leadership Training Team completed the “Team Building” training module for Leadership School.   
HR sent out notice for Open Enrollment for FSA, Dental and Voluntary Life 
New team (Finance and Acquisition Services Team) generated their charter and held several workshops 
to begin analyzing process flows. 
The comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for FY 2016 was completed. 
Completed multiple RFP’s/RFQ’s for internal customers 
 
 

 
Performance Measures for the USD Investment Portfolio    

 

 
 

Business Services Group 
November 2016 

Page 25 of 151



Maturity 

Range

Face Amount

/ Shares

YTM @ 

Cost
Cost Value

Days To 

Maturity

% of 

Portfolio 

Market 

Value 
Book Value

Duration 

To 

Maturity

0-1 Month 6,032,725.91 0.678 6,032,725.91 1 13.25 6,032,725.91 6,032,725.91 0.00

1-3 Months 4,061,000.00 0.848 4,164,264.35 64 9.14 4,072,511.65 4,072,321.60 0.18

3-6 Months 5,038,000.00 0.888 5,044,882.77 129 11.08 5,040,660.73 5,041,821.19 0.36

6-9 Months 4,721,000.00 0.936 4,734,399.00 245 10.39 4,721,553.76 4,726,598.17 0.67

9-12 Months 2,975,000.00 0.938 2,976,720.00 322 6.54 2,972,455.80 2,975,684.79 0.88

1-2 Years 3,496,000.00 1.107 3,500,410.00 480 7.69 3,488,008.24 3,498,658.67 1.30

2-3 Years 5,154,000.00 1.419 5,159,756.57 1,020 11.33 5,129,588.52 5,158,461.40 2.75

3-4 Years 4,248,000.00 2.069 4,439,145.28 1,299 9.75 4,371,091.84 4,415,007.06 3.36

4-5 Years 9,500,000.00 1.983 9,494,500.00 1,613 20.85 9,374,965.00 9,495,013.51 4.28

TOTAL / 

AVERAGE
45,225,725.91 1.285 45,546,803.88 682 100 45,203,561.45 45,416,292.30 1.81

Page 26 of 151



Union Sanitary District
Board Report - Holdings
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Class
Average By: Cost Value
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 11/30/2016

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Agencies

FFCB 1.17 5/16/2019-17 3133EF7L5 Moodys-
Aaa 5/16/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.170 993,970.00 1.170 5/16/2017 5/16/2019 2.20

FFCB 1.3 11/25/2019-16 3133EGBK0 Moodys-
Aaa 5/25/2016 1,000,000.00 997,950.00 1.300 986,040.00 1.360 11/25/2019 2.19

FFCB 1.59 3/23/2020-17 3133EFR25 Moodys-
Aaa 3/23/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.590 998,870.00 1.590 3/23/2017 3/23/2020 2.20

FFCB 1.7 5/3/2021-17 3133EF5T0 Moodys-
Aaa 5/3/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.700 984,530.00 1.700 5/3/2017 5/3/2021 2.20

FHLB 0.8 5/17/2017 3130A4Q54 Moodys-
Aaa 3/27/2015 1,000,000.00 1,001,690.00 0.800 1,000,450.00 0.720 5/17/2017 2.20

FHLB 0.9 9/28/2017 3130A5KH1 Moodys-
Aaa 7/22/2015 1,000,000.00 1,001,140.00 0.900 1,000,040.00 0.847 9/28/2017 2.20

FHLB Step 3/15/2021-16 3130A7EG6 Moodys-
Aaa 3/15/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.000 996,740.00 2.216 12/15/2016 3/15/2021 2.20

FHLB Step 4/28/2021-16 3130A7PR0 Moodys-
Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.000 990,530.00 2.114 1/28/2017 4/28/2021 2.20

FHLB Step 4/28/2021-16 3130A7QX6 Moodys-
Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.250 988,490.00 2.021 4/28/2021 2.20

FHLMC 0.8 8/25/2017-16 3134G8L49 Moodys-
Aaa 2/25/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.800 998,390.00 0.800 2/25/2017 8/25/2017 2.20

FHLMC 1 7/25/2017 3134G3ZH6 Moodys-
Aaa 6/24/2015 1,000,000.00 1,004,540.00 1.000 1,001,450.00 0.780 7/25/2017 2.21

FHLMC 1.25 10/28/2019-17 3134G8XQ7 Moodys-
Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.250 988,270.00 1.250 4/28/2017 10/28/2019 2.20

FHLMC Step 3/30/2020-17 3134G8ST7 Moodys-
Aaa 3/30/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.000 999,370.00 1.744 3/30/2017 3/30/2020 2.20

FHLMC Step 4/28/2021-16 3134G8VZ9 Moodys-
Aaa 4/28/2016 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 1.250 2,459,775.00 2.116 4/28/2021 5.49

FHLMC Step 4/28/2021-16 3134G8Z28 Moodys-
Aaa 5/10/2016 1,000,000.00 999,500.00 1.125 987,200.00 2.044 1/28/2017 4/28/2021 2.19

FNMA 1.25 1/30/2017 3135G0GY3 Moodys-
Aaa 12/16/2015 1,000,000.00 1,004,790.00 1.250 1,001,300.00 0.820 1/30/2017 2.21

FNMA 1.5 6/16/2021-16 3136G3QX6 6/16/2016 1,000,000.00 995,000.00 1.500 970,430.00 1.604 12/16/2016 6/16/2021 2.18

Page 1 of 4

Page 27 of 151



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Moodys-
Aaa

FNMA Step 5/12/2021-17 3136G3MD4 Moodys-
Aaa 5/12/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.900 997,270.00 1.851 5/12/2017 5/12/2021 2.20

Sub Total / Average 19,500,000.00 19,504,610.00 1.162 19,343,115.00 1.534 42.82

CAMP

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 9,845.35 9,845.35 0.640 9,845.35 0.640 N/A N/A 0.02

Sub Total / Average 9,845.35 9,845.35 0.640 9,845.35 0.640 0.02

Certificates of Deposit

Ally Bank 1.35 10/28/2019 02006LQ48 None 10/27/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.350 247,006.76 1.350 10/28/2019 0.54

American Express Centurian 
1.05 6/5/2017 02587DYJ1 None 6/5/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.050 239,913.02 1.050 6/5/2017 0.53

Bank Hapoalim 0.85 2/17/2017 06251AL65 None 2/18/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.850 248,046.10 0.850 2/17/2017 0.54

BankUnited NA 0.9 5/24/2017 066519BE8 None 11/24/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.900 239,802.50 0.900 5/24/2017 0.53

Bar Harbor Bank 0.7 1/30/2017 066851TT3 None 6/30/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.700 239,975.62 0.700 1/30/2017 0.53

Capital One Bank 1.5 
10/26/2020 140420L99 None 10/26/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.500 246,491.84 1.500 10/26/2020 0.54

Capital One National Asso 
Bank 1.25 8/28/2017 14042E6B1 None 8/26/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 1.250 245,076.34 1.250 8/28/2017 0.54

Comenity Capital 1.25 
4/11/2019 20033ASR8 None 10/25/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.250 247,188.57 1.250 4/11/2019 0.54

Community Bank of the 
Chesapeake 0.75 8/8/2017 20350ABN0 None 6/8/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.750 247,213.69 0.750 8/8/2017 0.54

Compass Bank 0.95 6/5/2017 20451PLE4 None 6/5/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.950 239,789.09 0.950 6/5/2017 0.53

Discover Bank 0.75 1/3/2017 254672QZ4 None 7/1/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.750 240,035.83 0.750 1/3/2017 0.53

First Bank of Richmond 0.7 
8/2/2017 319267FK1 None 6/2/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.700 247,148.69 0.700 8/2/2017 0.54

First Niagara Bank 1.1 
10/30/2017 33583CSV2 None 10/30/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 1.100 244,076.33 1.100 10/30/2017 0.54

Franklin Synergy Bank 0.85 
12/11/2017 35471TCH3 None 6/10/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.850 245,969.90 0.850 12/11/2017 0.54

Goldman Sachs Bank 1 
10/16/2017 38148JQX2 None 4/27/2015 240,000.00 239,520.00 1.000 239,195.21 1.069 10/16/2017 0.53

JP Morgan Chase Bank 1.1 
7/15/2019 48125Y5L4 None 7/15/2016 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.100 246,801.63 1.100 7/15/2019 0.55

Marlin Business Bank 0.85 
8/24/2017 57116ALG1 None 2/24/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.850 247,346.27 0.850 8/24/2017 0.54

58403B2L9 None 10/28/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 1.150 244,187.92 1.150 10/30/2017 0.54

Page 2 of 4

Page 28 of 151



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Medallion Bank 1.15 
10/30/2017

Merrick Bank 0.9 5/19/2017 59013JLK3 None 11/19/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.900 239,807.86 0.900 5/19/2017 0.53

Pacific Premier Bank 0.9 
12/5/2017 69478QDG2 None 6/3/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.900 246,128.34 0.900 12/5/2017 0.54

Peoples State Bank of Newton 
0.7 6/15/2017 712490AC5 None 6/15/2016 249,000.00 249,000.00 0.700 248,429.69 0.700 6/15/2017 0.55

Santander Bank 0.8 2/17/2017 80280JLS8 None 2/17/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.800 248,019.10 0.800 2/17/2017 0.54

TCF National Bank 0.85 
8/17/2017 872278SH0 None 2/17/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.850 247,363.31 0.850 8/17/2017 0.54

Wells Fargo Bank 1.15 
7/22/2019 9497486R3 None 7/20/2016 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.150 247,110.76 1.150 7/22/2019 0.55

Wex Bank 0.85 5/19/2017 92937CDE5 None 11/20/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.850 244,746.42 0.850 5/19/2017 0.54

Sub Total / Average 6,135,000.00 6,134,520.00 0.968 6,116,870.79 0.971 13.47

Corporate Issues

American Express Credit 2.375 
3/24/2017 0258M0DD8 Moodys-A2 5/25/2016 1,000,000.00 1,012,171.77 2.375 1,003,970.00 0.900 3/24/2017 2.22

Caterpillar Financial 1 3/3/2017 14912L5Z0 Moodys-A2 12/23/2014 1,313,000.00 1,307,603.57 1.000 1,311,883.95 1.190 3/3/2017 2.87

Chevron Corp 2.193 
11/15/2019 166764AN0 Moodys-

Aa2 2/26/2016 1,160,000.00 1,167,806.57 2.193 1,173,200.80 2.004 11/15/2019 2.56

General Electric Capital Corp 
5.4 2/15/2017 36962G2G8 Moodys-A1 3/2/2015 1,085,000.00 1,179,514.35 5.400 1,094,765.00 0.890 2/15/2017 2.59

HSBC 4.875 8/24/2020 4042Q1AE7 Moodys-A1 5/17/2016 2,000,000.00 2,191,145.28 4.875 2,126,360.00 2.500 8/24/2020 4.81

JP Morgan Chase & Co 2 
8/15/2017 48126EAA5 Moodys-A3 2/16/2016 1,000,000.00 1,008,859.00 2.000 1,004,510.00 1.400 8/15/2017 2.21

Royal Bank of Canada 1.2 
1/23/2017 78010UNX1 Moodys-

Aa3 10/2/2015 1,000,000.00 1,003,960.00 1.200 1,000,370.00 0.895 1/23/2017 2.20

Toyota Motor Credit 1.55 
7/13/2018 89236TCP8 Moodys-

Aa3 3/16/2016 1,000,000.00 1,002,490.00 1.550 1,000,660.00 1.440 7/13/2018 2.20

Toyota Motor Credit Corp 1.2 
4/6/2018 89236TCX1 Moodys-

Aa3 5/24/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,360.00 1.200 996,070.00 1.180 4/6/2018 2.20

Sub Total / Average 10,558,000.00 10,873,910.54 2.695 10,711,789.75 1.496 23.87

LAIF

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 6,022,880.56 6,022,880.56 0.678 6,022,880.56 0.678 N/A N/A 13.22

Sub Total / Average 6,022,880.56 6,022,880.56 0.678 6,022,880.56 0.678 13.22

Treasury

T-Bond 0.5 3/31/2017 912828J92 3/9/2016 1,000,000.00 998,417.43 0.500 1,000,000.00 0.650 3/31/2017 2.19

Page 3 of 4

Page 29 of 151



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Moodys-
Aaa

T-Note 0.875 1/15/2018 912828H37 Moodys-
Aaa 6/1/2015 1,000,000.00 1,001,560.00 0.875 999,180.00 0.815 1/15/2018 2.20

T-Note 0.875 11/15/2017 912828G20 Moodys-
Aaa 6/24/2015 1,000,000.00 1,001,060.00 0.875 999,880.00 0.830 11/15/2017 2.20

Sub Total / Average 3,000,000.00 3,001,037.43 0.750 2,999,060.00 0.765 6.59

Total / Average 45,225,725.91 45,546,803.88 1.411 45,203,561.45 1.285 100

Page 4 of 4

Page 30 of 151



Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal Realized Gain/Loss Interest/Dividends Coupon Rate YTM @ Cost Settlement Date Total

BankUnited NA 0.9 5/24/2017 066519BE8 0.00 0.00 1,088.88 0.900 0.000 11/24/2016 1,088.88

Bar Harbor Bank 0.7 1/30/2017 066851TT3 0.00 0.00 142.68 0.700 0.000 11/29/2016 142.68

Chevron Corp 2.193 11/15/2019 166764AN0 0.00 0.00 12,719.40 2.193 0.000 11/15/2016 12,719.40

Comenity Capital 1.25 4/11/2019 20033ASR8 0.00 0.00 263.29 1.250 0.000 11/14/2016 263.29

Community Bank of the Chesapeake 0.75 8/8/2017 20350ABN0 0.00 0.00 779.67 0.750 0.000 11/08/2016 779.67

FFCB 1.17 5/16/2019-17 3133EF7L5 0.00 0.00 5,850.00 1.170 0.000 11/16/2016 5,850.00

FFCB 1.3 11/25/2019-16 3133EGBK0 0.00 0.00 6,500.00 1.300 0.000 11/25/2016 6,500.00

FFCB 1.7 5/3/2021-17 3133EF5T0 0.00 0.00 8,500.00 1.700 0.000 11/03/2016 8,500.00

FHLB 0.625 11/23/2016 3130A3J70 0.00 0.00 3,125.00 0.625 0.000 11/23/2016 3,125.00

FHLB 0.8 5/17/2017 3130A4Q54 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.800 0.000 11/17/2016 4,000.00

FNMA Step 5/12/2021-17 3136G3MD4 0.00 0.00 4,500.00 0.900 0.000 11/12/2016 4,500.00

Franklin Synergy Bank 0.85 12/11/2017 35471TCH3 0.00 0.00 179.04 0.850 0.000 11/11/2016 179.04

Medallion Bank 1.15 10/30/2017 58403B2L9 0.00 0.00 239.29 1.150 0.000 11/30/2016 239.29

Merrick Bank 0.9 5/19/2017 59013JLK3 0.00 0.00 183.45 0.900 0.000 11/19/2016 183.45

Pacific Premier Bank 0.9 12/5/2017 69478QDG2 0.00 0.00 189.57 0.900 0.000 11/05/2016 189.57

Peoples State Bank of Newton 0.7 6/15/2017 712490AC5 0.00 0.00 148.04 0.700 0.000 11/15/2016 148.04

Safra National Bank 0.7 11/29/2016 78658QSF1 0.00 0.00 1,715.00 0.700 0.000 11/29/2016 1,715.00

T-Note 0.875 11/15/2017 912828G20 0.00 0.00 4,375.00 0.875 0.000 11/15/2016 4,375.00

Wells Fargo Bank 1.15 7/22/2019 9497486R3 0.00 0.00 243.20 1.150 0.000 11/20/2016 243.20

Wex Bank 0.85 5/19/2017 92937CDE5 0.00 0.00 1,049.81 0.850 0.000 11/20/2016 1,049.81

Sub Total / Average 0.00 0.00 55,791.32 55,791.32

FHLB 0.625 11/23/2016 3130A3J70 1,000,000.00 999,000.00 1,000.00 3,125.00 0.625 0.000 11/23/2016 1,003,125.00

Safra National Bank 0.7 11/29/2016 78658QSF1 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.00 0.700 0.000 11/29/2016 245,000.00

Sub Total / Average 1,245,000.00 1,244,000.00 1,000.00 3,125.00 0.00 1,248,125.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 N/A 0.000 11/14/2016 400,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00 N/A 0.000 11/23/2016 500,000.00

Sub Total / Average 900,000.00 900,000.00 0.00 900,000.00

Begin Date: 10/31/2016, End Date: 11/30/2016

Interest

Matured

Withdraw

Union Sanitary District
Transactions Summary
Board Report - Activity
Group By: Action
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios

Page 31 of 151



MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2016 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY 

 

Capital Improvement Program 
 
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – The contractor completed the installation of the new 
progressive cavity pumps, grinders, monorail system, process piping and valves.  Installation of electrical conduits, 
wiring, heat tracing cable and insulation is currently in progress.   
 
Fremont and Paseo Padre Lift Stations Improvements Project – The contractor continued the installation of 
electrical conduits and wiring at Paseo Padre Lift Station. The first lift pump at Paseo Padre Lift Station has been 
set into place. 
 
MCC and PLC Replacement Project, Phase 3 – The contractor completed the installation of the electrical circuit 
breakers for Lift Pump Nos. 7 and 8 (West Aeration Blower Room) variable frequency drives.  The two drives were 
functionally tested and placed into operation. 
 
Plant Facilities Improvements Project – Project is substantially complete. Contractor worked on punch list items. 
 
Chemical Tanks and Piping Replacement Project – The contractor completed the excavation of new Hypo line.  
 
Aeration Blower Project – Project closeout is in progress.  Board acceptance will be at the December 12th Board 
meeting. 
 
Alvarado-Niles Road Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project – Project closeout is in progress. 
 
Pine St. Easement Improvements Project – Project closeout is nearly complete.  Board acceptance will be at the 
December 12th Board meeting. 
 
Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project, Phase 3 – Project is substantially complete.  Staff is 
finalizing change order negotiations with contractor. 
 
Sludge Degritter System Project – Review of degritter equipment submittal is in progress. 

 
 
  

Page 32 of 151



Customer Service 
 

Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours: 
Month Fremont Newark Union City Total

November-16 7 4 4 15
October-16 3 3 5 11

September-16 8 2 2 12
August-16 12 1 2 15

July-16 12 1 2 15
June-16 11 3 3 17

November-15 15 0 3 18

6-Month Total 85

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Fremont

Newark

Union City

Total

Sewer Permits Issued 

Month Repairs Mains New Laterals Restaurants Other
November-16 32 8 48 0 2

October-16 25 4 97 4 0
September-16 22 3 34 3 3

New Laterals - New residential lateral connections
Other - Non-residential construction (except restaurants)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

September-16 October-16 November-16

Repairs

Mains

New Laterals

Restaurants

Other

 
Page 33 of 151



Communication 
Designed USD informational presentation for Alameda County Special Districts Association meeting 
Shared CSDA’s Facebook check-in of USD’s presentation on USD Facebook page 
Co-branded FOG information with Republic Services for Union City Chamber December newsletter 
Continued participation in USD virtual tour video production planning 
Continued activity on Union City Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors – planning and executing 
Chamber’s December 8, 2016 “Holiday with the Cops” promotion and event 
Began planning for Centennial celebration 2018 
Member of CASA program committee – conference call to plan Open House/Plant Tours panel discussion 
at January 2017 conference 
Continued research regarding social media best practices 
Research regarding USD 2017 newsletter 

 
Environmental Compliance 

 
Pollution Prevention Program 
 
USD’s Environmental Compliance team conducts pollution prevention inspections to restaurants, car wash 
businesses, and other commercial facilities.  EC also conducts inspections and enforcement for the City of 
Fremont’s Environmental Services group.  We conduct over 600 Stormwater compliance inspections every year 
to ensure that commercial facilities, including restaurants and auto shops, comply with City Ordinance 
requirements, and do not discharge pollutants to the creeks and bay.  
 
For the past month, the EC team conducted 90 Stormwater (Urban Runoff), and 48 FOG (restaurant) inspections. 
During this reporting period, Inspectors identified 16 Stormwater and 7 FOG enforcement actions.  Six (6) of the 
Stormwater enforcements resulted in administrative fines ranging from $100 to $500.  One (1) of the 
administrative fines were for illicit discharges, and a total of 5 were for repeated violations.   
 
Urban Runoff Inspections and Enforcements 

November 
2016 

No. of UR 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

Total 
Enforcements 

No. of Illicit 
Discharge/s 1 

90 3 0 7 6 0 16 % enforcement 17.7 
 
FOG Inspections and Enforcements 

November 
2016 

No. of FOG 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF NOD 

Total 
Enforcements % enforcement 14.6 

48 2 5 0 0 0 7   
 

Enforcements: 
VW –Verbal Warning   WL – Warning Letter   NOV – Notices of Violation 
AF – Administrative Fine  LA – Legal Action   NOD – Notice of Deficiency 
AO – Administrative Order  C&D – Cease & Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non Compliance 
 
Dental Inspections, School Outreach, and Plant Tours 
 

# of Dental Inspections # of School Outreach Events including 
Sewer Science 

# of Plant Tours 

3 10 0 
 

Page 34 of 151



Industrial Pretreatment  
 
The Industrial Pretreatment program has a number of pending permits as shown in the table below.  USD inspectors 
are working with each of these companies to establish permitted industrial discharges. 
 
Pending Permits 

New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary 
Mission Linen Pacific Gas and Electric Company 
TE Connectivity  
Seagate Technology LLC FRC  
Chemetall  

 
Permits Issued  

Company Name Date Permit Issued 
Littelfuse, Inc. 11/22/16 

 
Industrial Closures  

Company Name Date of Closure 
Star Pacific #216 11/18/16 

 
Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 

Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted 
None  

 
Enforcement Action 

IU Name & 
Nature of 
Business 

Comments City 
 

Parameter
s Violated 

Discharge 
concentration 
(mg/L) 

USD/Fed 
Limit 
Violated 
(mg/L) 

Enforcement 
(1) 

Air Liquide 
Advanced 
Materials #013 

Violation Date: 
11/14/2016, 
Issued Date: 
12/7/2016 

Fremont Chromium 
and Nickel 

Chromium: 
3.0 mg/L 
Nickel: 2.0 
mg/L 

Chromium: 
<2.0 mg/L 
Nickel: <1.0 
mg/L 

N016-013 

 
(1) WL   – Warning Letter NOV – Notices of Violation AO – Administrative Order 

 C&D – Cease and Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non Compliance EM – Enforcement Meeting 
 
 

Other - Training, Special Meetings, Conferences, IAC (topics) 
 

Activity Date of Event Attendees 
BAPPG Steering Committee 

Meeting 
11/9/15 Doug Dattawalker 

MEDS Coalition 11/21/16 Doug Dattawalker 
 
 

Page 35 of 151



Engineering/Construction 
 
No. of projects under construction: 10 
 

 Construction Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
Nov. 2016 Activities 

1. Thickener Control Building 
Improvements Project – 
Curtis 

$9,990 12/16 94% 99% Installation of the new 
pumps, grinders, 
monorail system, 
process piping and 
valves has been 
completed.   

2. Fremont and Paseo Padre 
LSs Improvement - Derek 

$2,801 10/16 79% 100% First lift pump at Paseo 
Padre Lift Station has 
been set. 

3. MCC and PLC 
Replacement Project, 
Phase 3 – Thomas 

$869 12/16 98% 96% The variable frequency 
drives for Lift Pump 
Nos. 7 and 8 were 
functionally tested and 
placed into operation. 

4. Plant Facilities 
Improvements Project – 
Thomas 

$1,570 1/17 59% 89% Contractor worked on 
the punch list. 

5. Chemical Tanks and Piping 
Replacement Project – 
Thomas 

$2,102 10/17 4% 25% The contractor 
completed excavation 
for the new Hypo line. 

6. Aeration Blower Project – 
Curtis 

$1,065 8/16 100% 100% Project closeout nearly 
complete.  Board 
acceptance on Dec. 
12th. 

7. Alvarado-Niles Road SS 
Rehabilitation Project – 
Chris E. 

$3,026 10/16 100% 100% Project closeout in 
progress.   

8. Pine St. Easement 
Improvements –  
Chris E. 

$156 10/16 100% 100% Project closeout nearly 
complete.  Board 
acceptance on Dec. 
12th.  

9. Newark Backyard SS 
Relocation Project Phase 3 
–Andrew/Rollie 

$2,107 09/16 100% 100% Staff finalizing change 
order negotiations with 
contractor. 

10. Sludge Degritter System 
Project – Kevin 

$1,436 10/17 2% 10% Critical path submittals 
in progress.   

 

Page 36 of 151



Design/Study 
 

No. of projects in design/study phase: 11 
 

 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
Nov. 2016 Activities 

1.  Alvarado Basin Master 
Plan Capacity Assessment 
- Rollie 

$167 4/17 10% 17% Obtained data for 
updating of flow 
model.  Met with City 
of Fremont Planning. 

2. Plant Solids System / 
Capacity Assessment – 
Curtis 

$238 6/16 100% 100% Phase 1 completed.  
Phase 2 to begin in Jan. 
2017. 

3. Recycled Water Feasibility 
Study Update – Chris E. 

$130 12/16 99% 99% Final report under 
State’s Water Board 
review. 

4. Force Main Corrosion 
Repairs – Chris E. 

$26 12/16 70% 70% Preliminary design in 
progress.  Workshop 
complete. 

5. Headworks Knife Gate 
Valves 1-3 Replacement – 
Kevin 

In-
house 

10/16 100% 100% Bids opened on Nov. 
30th.  Board will 
consider award of the 
construction contract 
on Dec. 12th. 

6. Cogeneration Building 
HVAC Improvements 
Project - Derek 

$27 09/16 100% 100% Project is ready to 
advertise but on hold 
pending resolution of 
current Cogen issues. 

7. Seismic Vulnerability 
Assessment, Phase 3 - 
Thomas 

$105 04/17 10% 20% Consultant began 
review of the plans for 
the plant buildings that 
will be included in 
Phase 3. 

8. Standby Power 
Generation System 
Upgrade Project – 
Raymond/Kevin 

$175 05/17 0% 8% Staff and consultant 
conducted predesign 
phase kickoff meeting 
on Nov. 30th. 

9. Pavement Condition 
Assessment Project – 
Andrew 

$26 2/17 0% 25% Staff and consultant 
conducted study 
kickoff meeting on 
Nov. 1st. 

10. Force Main Condition 
Assessment – Andrew 

$121 10/17 0% 4% Staff and consultant 
conducted study 
kickoff meeting on 
Nov. 29th. 

11. Primary Digester No. 7 
Project – Curtis 

$127 7/17 0% 3% Staff and consultant 
will conduct the pre-
design kickoff meeting 
on Dec. 8th. 

 

 
Page 37 of 151



COLLECTION SERVICES
ACTIVITIES REPORT

November 2016
    
 
Progress/Accomplishments
   

Category 1 Spill, 140 gallons 11/18/16 Newark     
Completed 13.0 miles of cleaning of sewer lines in November 
Completed 10.5 miles of televising of sewer lines in November
Responded to 18 service request calls in November
Completed a total of 4 main repairs in November 
Trainings  

Excavation/Shoring Training 
NASSCO Recertification 
Ladder Safety 
 

Bay Area Spills for Same Time Period 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 38 of 151



Performance Measures 
 
 

 

 

           
 

 
 
 Page 39 of 151



 
 
 
 
 
 
Other Collection Services Status Data: 

 

 
Support Team Work Order Status: 
 
 

 

 
C/S Maintenance Status: 
 
 

  
   

 Jul           Sep             Nov           Jan            Mar           May 

Page 40 of 151



Future Planning

Other

GBT No. 3 Booster Pump Upsizing Trial

Cogen source testing with Blue Ski Enviornmental

Performance Measurements

                Fabrication, Maintenance and Construction
                 Activities Report

             November 2016

Progress/Accomplishments

Relocate Piian nozzles and hose to Secondary Clairifiers No. 5 & No. 6 handrail

Mosa completed the pump station JCR and has been added to the on-call rotation

Completed 96% of preventive maintenance activities for the month of November
Completed 127 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of November
Irvington Pump Station Head Gate No. 2 hydraulic cylinder removal, overhaul and replacement
Alvarado Pump Station Pump No. 4 installation
Sample Pump No. 7 overhaul

CB2 Gate No. 1 Repair and Gates 5 & 6 Seal Replacement

Cogen No. 2 4K service

Water Champ guide rail modificatoin

0

5

10

15

20

Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Priority A Repairs Required

Total Target

Fabrication, Maintenance and Construction 1Page 41 of 151



0

25

50

75

100

125

150

N
o.

  o
f  

W
O

s

Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month

Initiated Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days

# WO's Target

Fabrication, Maintenance and Construction 2Page 42 of 151



Present process control evaluation and modeling results to the TPO team members. 

Discussed air permitting alternatives report with CIP.

Conduct initial planning and logistics for the Volute thickener demonstration project.

Finalize draft Codigestion report.

Conduct initial planning and logistics for the Xylem aeration membrane cleaning project.

Atend the BACWA meeting in January.
Provide a response for to a request for information for the diester 7 design project.

Maintained 100% compliance with NPDES permits.

Provided staff wet weather training with artificially created high surge tower levels. 
Met with Dave Stoops of EBDA to discuss preliminary results from EBDA power billing 
evaluation.

Treatment & Disposal
Activities Report
November 2016

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 99% preventive maintenance activities for the month of November.
Conducted multiple plant shutdowns to provide access for the relining of the 60" Primary 
Effluent pipeline by CIP.

Provided data for Solida Capacity Assesment Phase II.
Attended the RMP annual meeting.

Future Planning

Conducted extensive sampling and analysis to evaluate organic loading to the Secondary 
Treatment system in an effort to troubleshoot poor effluent qualify events.

Cogen system produced 70% of power consumed for the month of November.

Other

Reviewed the Carollo Modeling data and attended the solids capacity accessment worksop No. 
2.  

Page 43 of 151



Performance Measurements

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

M
G

D

m
g/

l

Lab Results and Effluent Flow

EFF SS CBOD EFF SS Limit CBOD Limit Flow MGD

74%
58% 51%

73% 72%

51%

29% 32%
17% 22%

34%
50%

70%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

kW
h 

/1
00

00

Pe
rc

en
t P

ro
du

ce
d

Cogen Power Produced

Percent Produced kWh/10000

Parameter EBDA Limit Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16
Copper, μg/l 78 6.3 10.0 7.2
Mercury, μg/l 0.066 0.00226 0.00409 0.00572
Cyanide, μg/l 42 < 3.0 < 3.0 E 3.6
Ammonia- N, mg/L (Range) 130 35 - 46 38.1 - 40.4 32.2 - 43.7
Dioxin-Toxicity Equivalent (TEQ), μg/l 2.8 x 10-8 not tested not tested not tested
Fecal Coliform, MPN/100ml (Range)

500 12 - 27 5 - 15 6 - 72
1100 30 - 40 28 - 40 16 - 137

Enterococci *
242 < 10 - 10  10 -11 11 - 13

* Enterococci values are the weekly concentration range not the 5-Sample Geometric Mean range.

USD's Final Effluent Monthly Monitoring Results

E = Estimated value, concentration outside calibration range.  For SIP, E = DNQ, estimated 
concentration.

Page 44 of 151



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney

DATE: January 17, 2017 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 
 Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of January 23, 2017 

DETERMINE DATE FOR USD’S CENTENNIAL OPEN HOUSE EVENT; CONSIDER
OPTIONS FOR BOARD INVOLVEMENT IN EVENT PLANNING 

 
  
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board discuss and finalize a date for the District’s Centennial Open 
House Event in 2018, and consider options for Board involvement in planning the event. 
 
Background  
 
Public outreach and raising the District’s profile in the community are among our strategic 
goals.  Following discussions at past Strategic Planning sessions, the Board decided in 2014 that 
the District would hold its first Open House sometime in 2015.  An internal planning committee 
was formed to work on event logistics such as development of large equipment and display 
booths, planning for tours, and public notification.  In May 2015, the District held its first public 
Open House.   
  
During the Board discussion and debrief for the 2015 Open House, and more recently during 
the General Manager’s performance evaluation, staff received Board direction to plan for an 
Open House in celebration of the District’s centennial anniversary in 2018.  The date of the 
District’s actual centennial is May 27, 2018. 
 
 

Page 45 of 151



Discussion 
 
Event date: 
 
Finalizing an event date will be a cornerstone in moving forward with planning and scheduling.  
Previous discussions have resulted in consensus that May is an optimal month to hold the 
event due to the centennial date, weather conditions, and visitor convenience.  Staff is of the 
opinion that April could be risky in regard to weather and varied spring break schedules for 
students.  It was also noted that June brings graduations, concerts, and other end of the school 
year activities, as well as the beginning of vacation season. 
 
Staff considered community activities that usually take place on weekends during the month of 
May: 
 

Cinco de Mayo events (May 5 & 6) 
Mother’s Day weekend family activities (May 12 & 13) 
Memorial Day holiday weekend (May 26 – 28) 

 
For these reasons, staff is recommending that the District’s Centennial Open House celebration 
take place on Saturday, May 19, 2018.  
 
Board involvement in event planning: 
 
An internal Open House planning committee, comprised of representatives from each 
workgroup, has convened and will meet weekly during regular business hours to prepare for 
the event.  The committee includes members from the 2015 planning committee, with 
additional members to be added.  
 
The Board of Directors may wish to consider the following options for involvement in planning 
the 2018 Open House: 
 

1. Formation of an Ad Hoc subcommittee to receive information from the internal 
committee representatives and provide direction as-needed. 

2. Appoint a Board member to attend and participate in weekly Open House planning 
committee meetings. 

3. Staff would provide quarterly updates to the Board at future Board meetings. 
 
It is the Board’s discretion how they would like to proceed following discussion at the Board 
meeting. 
 
 

Page 46 of 151



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: January 9, 2017 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

J. Leah Castella, Assistant General Counsel  
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 – Meeting of January 23, 2017 

Consider claim filed by Fernando Trujillo and Maria Del Carmen Bibiano  
 
Recommendation 
 
Deny Claim and send written notice of denial to claimant’s attorney of record.  
 
Background 
 
On March 23 2016, a 1984 catering truck and a 1997 Toyota Corolla were involved in a traffic 
accident on Mission Blvd.  The “Cause” section of the Police Report stated that “an associated 
factor in this collision was the improper positioning of the manhole cover” owned by Union 
Sanitary District.  The report also indicated that the accident was caused by one of the drivers 
following too closely behind an unknown vehicle.  
 
On August 5, 2016, we received a claim from Fernando Trujillo and Maria Del Carmen Bibiano, 
attached as Exhibit A.  The claim did not specify an amount of damages, and instead just 
indicated that the claimants were seeking compensation for damage to their truck, for bodily 
injury, and for pain and suffering.  The District’s insurance carrier (Carl Warren) is in contact 
with the claimant’s attorney, but despite repeated requests, the claimant has not yet provided 
the District with any further information regarding the amount of their claim.   
 
Because it has been more than 45 days since this claim was submitted, it is currently deemed 
denied by operation of law.  When a claim is denied by operation of law, a claimant has two 
years to file a complaint.  A public agency can, however, send a notice of rejection of claim 

Page 47 of 151



even after a claim is deemed denied by operation of law. By doing so, the agency can shorten 
the statute of limitations from two years to six months. Since Mr. Trujillo and Ms. Bibiano have 
failed to specify an amount for this claim, we recommend denying the claim and sending a 
notice of rejection of claim to their attorney of record.    
 
 

 

Page 48 of 151



Page 49 of 151



Page 50 of 151



Page 51 of 151



Page 52 of 151



Page 53 of 151



Page 54 of 151



Page 55 of 151



Page 56 of 151



Page 57 of 151



Page 58 of 151



Page 59 of 151



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DATE: January 1 , 2017 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 
Rod Schurman, Associate Engineer 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11 - Meeting of January 23, 2017 
Consider a Resolution of Application to LAFCO for Annexation No. U-293, 
Dumbarton Quarry Regional Park in the City of Fremont 

Recommendation 

Consider adopting a resolution of application that requests the Local Agency Formation 
Commission of Alameda County (LAFCO) begin proceedings for Annexation No. U-293, 
Dumbarton Quarry Regional Park, located at 9600 Quarry Road in the city of Fremont. 

Background 

Dumbarton Quarry Associates has submitted a request to annex the Dumbarton Quarry Regional 
Park, consisting of one parcel, Assessor Parcel Number 537-051-002-02, which comprises 91.01 
acres, to the District. The area to be annexed is located on the north side of State Route 84, west 
of Paseo Padre Parkway and State Route 84 in the city of Fremont. The parcel to be annexed is 
adjacent to Annexation U-199, which was annexed to the District in 1984. A vicinity map is 
attached. 

The Dumbarton Quarry Regional Park is a proposed recreational development that will include 
picnic and play areas, restroom facilities, turf meadows, overnight camping facilities with 63 
recreational vehicle (RV) sites, 17 walk-in campsites and 20 car campsites, with a small store, 
laundry, and shower facilities to serve the campsites.  A 13,000-square foot event center, a 150-
person outdoor amphitheater and a one-half acre corporation yard and maintenance facility are 
scheduled for future construction. 

Page 60 of 151



Agenda Item No. 11 
Meeting of January 23, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
The parcel to be annexed lies outside the District’s current boundaries but is within the city of 
Fremont limits. Annexation of this parcel is needed to provide sanitary sewer service to the 
Dumbarton Quarry Regional Park’s various facilities and RV sites. Service will be provided through 
the construction of a new private sanitary sewer main constructed by Dumbarton Quarry 
Associates. 
 
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City of Fremont, as Lead 
Agency, has prepared and adopted a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the project. A Notice of 
Determination stating that “the project will not have a significant effect on the environment” was 
filed on November 26, 2013.  USD is required to review the project as a Responsible Agency and 
use the environmental documents previously prepared by the City of Fremont to make its 
determination. Staff has reviewed these documents and finds that the environmental documents 
are adequate for consideration by the Board.  Staff recommends that the Board concur with the 
City’s determination that there will be no significant environmental impacts from the project. 
 
The annexation is within the District’s sphere of influence, and sewer service is available to serve 
the annexation.  The District has adequate capacity, and there will be no adverse impact on the 
ratepayers by the proposed annexation. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RA/RS:ks 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 
  Vicinity Map 
  Annexation Area Legal Description 

Annexation Area Plat 
  Annexation Request 
  Annexation Questionnaire 

Notice of Determination (CEQA) 
 
 
 
 

Page 61 of 151



RESOLUTION NO. _________

A RESOLUTION OF APPLICATION BY UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
REQUESTING THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

BEGIN PROCEEDINGS FOR ANNEXATION NO. U-293

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT, that

WHEREAS, the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT desires to initiate 
proceedings pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government 
Reorganization Act of 2000, commencing with Section 56000 of the California 
Government Code, for the annexation of territory to District boundaries; and

WHEREAS, notice of intent to adopt this resolution of application has been 
given to each interested and each subject agency; and

WHEREAS, the territory proposed to be annexed is uninhabited, and a 
description of the boundaries of the territory is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto 
and by this release incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, this proposal is consistent with the Sphere of Influence of the 
District; and

WHEREAS, it is desired to provide that the proposed annexation be subject 
to the following terms and conditions:

1. Payment of District Ordinance No. 25.6 Annex Fee of $162 per acre.

2. The annexation of territory referred to herein does not guarantee 
capacity will be available in UNION SANITARY DISTRICT’s sewer 
system to serve said territory at the time sewer construction permits 
are desired; and

WHEREAS, the reason for the proposed annexation is to provide sanitary 
sewer service to the proposed facilities and recreational vehicle campsites within 
the Dumbarton Quarry Regional Park, and; 

WHEREAS, this Board certifies that this annexation has been reviewed in 
accordance with the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act, and
that the annexation of the property into the Union Sanitary District service area will
have no adverse environmental impact as a result.

Page 62 of 151



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that:

1. This Resolution of Application is hereby adopted and approved by the 
Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, and the Local 
Agency Formation Commission of Alameda County is hereby 
requested to take proceedings for the annexation of territory as 
described in Exhibit A according to the terms and conditions stated 
above and in the manner provided by the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg 
Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000.

2. The UNION SANITARY DISTRICT Board of Directors does hereby 
request the Local Agency Formation Commission to waive the 
conducting authority for Annexation No. U-293. 

Passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
at a regular meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of January, 2017, by the following 
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

ADOPTED:                                
TOM HANDLEY
President, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District 

Attest:

ANJALI LATHI
Secretary, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

Page 63 of 151



Vicinity Map
Annexation U-293 Dumbarton Quarry Regional Park

Disclaimer:
The information on this map is provided by Union Sanitary District (USD) for internal use only.  Such information
is derived from multiple sources which may not be current, be outside the control of USD, and may be of 
indeterminate accuracy.  The information provided hereon may be inaccurate or out of date and any person or 
entity who relies on said information for any purpose whatsoever does so solely at their own risk.

For USD use only

Legend

0 1400ft700

Printed: 10/25/2016 3:24:44 PMPage 64 of 151

Annexation
U-293

APN 537 05100200

Existing USD Boundary

Adjacent Area 
Previously Annexed 
to USD (CalTrans)



Page 65 of 151



Page 66 of 151



Page 67 of 151



Page 68 of 151



Page 69 of 151



Page 70 of 151



Page 71 of 151



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DATE: January 17, 2017 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Derek Chiu, Assistant Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 12 - Meeting of January 23, 2017 
 Award the Construction Contract for the Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation 

Valves Project to TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. 
  
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board award the construction contract for the Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas 
Isolation Valves Project (Project) to TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. (TNT) in the amount of 
$99,908.  Funds for the project have been budgeted in the Renewal and Replacement Fund. 
 
Background 
 
The primary digestion process produces digester gas that contains methane and hydrogen 
sulfide gases.  Before the digester gas is utilized at the cogeneration engine generators and/or 
the heat loop boiler, it flows to the digester gas conditioning system where hydrogen sulfide, 
siloxanes, and moisture are removed from the gas.  The remaining methane gas is then used as 
fuel by the cogeneration engine generators and/or the heat loop boiler. 
 
There are six primary and two secondary digesters at the Plant.  At each primary and secondary 
digester, the digester gas is collected from the top of each digester dome in individual stainless 
steel pipelines before combining the gas into the digester gas pipeline loop.  The digester gas 
pipeline loop then transports the collected gas to the digester gas conditioning system located 
near the Cogeneration Building.   
 

Page 72 of 151



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of January 23, 2017 
Page 2 

Digester No. 3 was originally constructed in 1962, and Digesters No. 1 and 2 were constructed 
during the 1978 plant expansion project.  The three digesters were constructed in close 
proximity to each other.  The individual digester gas pipelines from the dome of each of the 
three digesters are combined on the roof of Heating and Mixing Building No. 1 before 
connecting to the digester gas pipeline loop.  Figure 1 shows the location of the digester 
facilities. 
 
Currently, staff is unable to isolate the digester gas pipelines between the domes of Digesters 
No. 1 and 3 and the digester gas pipeline loop.  As a result, if staff needs to take either Digester 
No. 1 or No. 3 out of service, the three digesters must be taken out of service together.  Staff is 
able to isolate the digester gas pipeline from Digester No. 2 without affecting the operation of 
the other two digesters.  The Plant’s solids process does not have the capacity to allow the 
three digesters to be taken out of service at the same time and Digester No. 3 is scheduled to 
be taken out of service in Spring 2017 for cleaning. 
 
Scope of Work 
 
Staff completed the Project’s design.  The two major scope items are the installation of a 
temporary bypass piping system at Digesters No. 1, 2, and 3 and the installation of digester gas 
isolation valves and associated piping components and pipe supports at Digesters No. 1 and 3. 
 
Bid Results 
 
Staff advertised the Project for bids on December 13, 2016.  Staff received and opened two 
bids on January 5, 2017.  The bid results are summarized in the table below. 
 

Contractor Total Contract Price  
TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.  

Sacramento, CA $99,908 

D.W. Nicholson Corporation 
Hayward, CA $121,400 

 
Both bids came in below the Engineer’s Estimate of $125,000.  TNT is the apparent low bidder 
with a bid of $99,908, which is 21% below the Engineer’s Estimate. 
 
The Total Contract Price is the basis of award and includes the total base bid plus Bid Alternate 
A.  Bid Alternate A will provide for builder’s risk insurance coverage.  Builder’s risk insurance is 
a special type of property insurance that indemnifies against the loss of or damage to a 
building and equipment under construction.  TNT submitted a bid amount of $0 for this 
coverage.  Staff recommends including this bid alternate in the construction contract. 
 
Table 1 includes the bid tabulation sheet and shows detailed results of the two bids. 

Page 73 of 151



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of January 23, 2017 
Page 3 

Bid Irregularity 
 
TNT’s bid included a bid irregularity.  The District bid documents require the bidder’s three-
year average of the Worker’s Compensation Experience Modification (EMR) must not be 
greater than 1.1.  TNT’s EMR for 2016 was 1.0 but did not have EMRs to report for 2014 and 
2015.  Prior to 2016, TNT was self-insured since 2012 through the California Contractors 
Network (CCN) and the Worker’s Compensation Insurance Rating Bureau (WCIRB) will not 
calculate an EMR for any self-insured group members.  
 
Staff verified with the third party administrator for CCN that TNT did not have any losses 
reported from 2012 through 2016.  As a result, if the WCIRB were to determine the EMR for 
TNT, it would be less than 1.0 and TNT’s three-year average would be less than 1.1.  Staff 
consulted with legal counsel, McInerney and Dillon about this anomaly.  McInerney and Dillon 
advised that since TNT met the intent of the bid requirement, the District can waive this minor 
bid irregularity. 
 
Staff reviewed TNT’s bid and determined it to be the lowest responsive and responsible bid for 
the Project.  TNT is a General Engineering Class A licensed contractor who has successfully 
completed water and wastewater treatment plant projects since 2014 for Napa Sanitation 
District, Elk Grove Water District, and Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District.  Staff 
contacted these three agencies and received positive comments on TNT’s performance on 
their projects.  This will be TNT’s first project with the District. 
 
Construction 
 
The Project’s construction period will be 75 calendar days with an estimated completion in 
April 2017.  Staff will provide construction management and inspection services. 
 
Staff recommends the Board award the construction contract, including Bid Alternate A, for the 
Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project to TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. in the 
amount of $99,908. 
 
 
RBC/SEG/RC/DC:ks 
 
 
Attachments: Figure 1 – Site Map 
  Table 1 – Bid Tabulation Table 
  Agreement 

Page 74 of 151



FI
G

U
R

E
 1

  –
  P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 D

IG
E

S
TE

R
S

 N
O

. 1
 A

N
D

 3
 G

A
S

 IS
O

LA
TI

O
N

 V
A

LV
E

S
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 

P
ag

e 
75

 o
f 1

51



Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project, Project No. 800-490
Bid Tabulation
Bid Opening: 2:00 pm, January 5, 2017
Engineer's Estimate:  $125,000

TNT Industrial 
Contractors,

Inc.

D.W. Nicholson 
Corporation

Engineer's
Estimate - 

Union Sanitary 
District

Total Bid Price Total Bid Price Total Bid Price

1

Completion of all Work included as 
part of the Contract Documents for 
Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation 
Valves Project No. 800-490, except 
as specified under Bid Item 2, for 

the amount of

LS 1 $99,508 $120,900 $125,000

2

Cost for providing all shoring and 
bracing on all Bid Items above 

including but not limited to that as 
required by Sections 6700-6708 of 

the Labor Code

LS 1 $400 $0 Incl.

Bid
Alternate A Builder's Risk Insurance LS 1 $0 $500 Incl.

$99,908 $121,400 $125,000

Bid Item 
No. Bid Item Unit Estimated

Quantity

Contract Price (Total Base Bid and Bid Alternate A) - This is 
the basis of award

Page 76 of 151



AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project

Project No. 800-490 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and concluded, in duplicate, this        day of January, 2017, 
between the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT (“District”), Union City, California, and TNT 
Industrial Contractors, Inc. ("Contractor"), License No. 622974. 

 W I T N E S S E T H : 

1.That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned, to be 
made and performed by the District, and under the conditions expressed in the two bonds, 
bearing even date with these presents, and hereunto annexed, the Contractor agrees with the 
District, at his/her own proper cost and expense, to do all the work and furnish all the materials 
necessary to construct and complete in good workmanlike and substantial manner the project 
entitled: Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project (Project No. 800-490) in strict 
conformity with the plans and specifications prepared therefor, which said plans and 
specifications are hereby specially referred to and by said reference made a part hereof. 

2. Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements of the parties 
herein contained and to be performed, the Contractor hereby agrees to complete the work in 
accordance with the terms and conditions stipulated in the Contract Documents for the sum of 
ninety nine thousand nine hundred and eight dollars ($99,908) (the “Contract Price”) computed 
in accordance with Contractor’s accepted proposal dated January 5, 2017, which accepted 
proposal is incorporated herein by reference thereto as if herein fully set forth.  This sum 
includes the following bid alternate that has been accepted by the District and are hereby 
incorporated in the Agreement: Bid Alternate A.  Compensation shall be based upon the lump 
sum bid items plus the unit prices stated in the Bid Schedule times the actual quantities or units 
of work and materials performed or furnished.  The further terms, conditions, and covenants of 
this Agreement are set forth in the Contract Documents, each of which is by this reference 
made a part hereof.  Payments are to be made to the Contractor in accordance with the 
provisions of the Contract Documents and the Technical Specifications in legally executed and 
regularly issued warrants of the District, drawn on the appropriate fund or funds as required by 
law and order of the District thereof. 

3. The District hereby promises and agrees with the said Contractor to employ, and does 
hereby employ, the said Contractor to provide the materials and to do the work according to the 
terms and conditions herein contained and referred to, for the Contract Price, and hereby 
contracts to pay the same at the time, in the manner and upon the conditions set forth in the 
Contract Documents; and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein 
contained.

4. The Contractor and any subcontractor performing or contracting any work shall comply 
with all applicable provisions of the California Labor Code for all workers, laborers and 
mechanics of all crafts, classifications or types, including, but necessarily limited to the 

Page 77 of 151



Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project 
Project No. 800-490 
Agreement

Page 2 of 9

following:

(a) The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of Section 1810 to 
1815, inclusive, of the California Labor Code relating to working hours.  The Contractor 
shall, as a penalty to the District, forfeit the sum of twenty-five dollars ($25) for each 
worker employed in the execution of the Contract by the Contractor or by any 
subcontractor for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to 
work more than eight (8) hours in any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one 
calendar week, unless such worker receives compensation for all hours worked in 
excess of eight (8) hours at not less than 1-1/2 times the basic rate of pay. 

(b) Pursuant to the provision of California Labor Code, Sections 1770 et. seq., 
the Contractor and any subcontractor under him shall pay not less than the prevailing 
rate of per diem wages as determined by the Director of the California Department of 
Industrial Relations.  Pursuant to the provisions of California Labor Code Section 
1773.2, the Contractor is hereby advised that copies of the prevailing rate of per diem 
wages and a general prevailing rate for holidays, Saturdays and Sundays and overtime 
work in the  locality in which the work is to be performed for each  craft, classification, or 
type of worker required to execute the Contract, are on file in the office of the District,  
which copies shall be made available to any interested party on request.  The Contractor 
shall post a copy of said prevailing rate of per diem wages at each job site. 

(c) As required by Section 1773.1 of the California Labor Code, the Contractor 
shall pay travel and subsistence payments to each worker needed to execute the work, 
as such travel and subsistence payments are defined in the applicable collective 
bargaining agreements filed in accordance with this Section. 

(d) To establish such travel and subsistence payments, the representative of 
any craft, classification, or type of workman needed to execute the contracts shall file 
with the Department of Industrial Relations fully executed copies of collective bargaining 
agreements for the particular craft, classification or type of work involved.  Such 
agreements shall be filed within 10 days after their execution and thereafter shall 
establish such travel and subsistence payments whenever filed 30 days prior to the call 
for bids. 

(e) The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Section 1775 of the 
California Labor Code and shall, as a penalty to the District, forfeit not more than two 
hundred dollars ($200) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid 
less than the prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft, classification, or type of 
worker needed to execute the contract.  The Contractor shall pay each worker an 
amount equal to the difference between the prevailing wage rates and the amount paid 
worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which a worker was paid less than 
the prevailing wage rate. 

(f) As required under the provisions of Section 1776 of the California Labor 
Code, Contractor and each subcontractor shall keep an accurate payroll record, showing 
the name, address, social security number, work classification, and straight time and 

Page 78 of 151



Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project 
Project No. 800-490 
Agreement

Page 3 of 9

overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each 
journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in 
connection with the public work.  Said payroll shall be certified and shall be available for 
inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of the Contractor on the 
following basis: 

(1) A certified copy of an employee's payroll record shall be made 
available for inspection or furnished to the employee or his or her authorized 
representative on request. 

(2) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in Paragraph 4(f), 
herein, shall be made available for inspection or furnished upon request to the 
District, the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and the Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations. 

(3) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in Paragraph 4(f), 
herein, shall be made available upon request by the public for inspection or for 
copies thereof; provided, however, that a request by the public shall be made 
through the District, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of 
Labor Standards Enforcement.  If the requested payroll records have not been 
provided pursuant to subparagraph 4(e) herein, the requesting party shall, prior 
to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of preparation by the 
Contractor, subcontractors, and the entity through which the request was made. 
 The public shall not be given access to the records at the principal offices of 
the Contractor. 

The certified payroll records shall be on forms provided by the Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement or shall contain the same information as the forms 
provided by the division. 

Certified payroll records shall be submitted electronically as required under 
California Labor Code Section 1776 to the Labor Commissioner pursuant to 
California Code of Regulations Chapter 8, Section 16404. 

Each Contractor shall file a certified copy of the records, enumerated in 
Paragraph 4(f) with the entity that requested the records within 10 days after 
receipt of a written request.  Any copy of records made available for inspection 
as copies and furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by the 
District, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement shall be marked or obliterated in such a manner as to 
prevent disclosure of an individual's name, address, and social security 
number.  The name and address of the Contractor awarded the contract or 
performing the contract shall not be marked or obliterated.  The Contractor shall 
inform the District of the location of the records enumerated under Paragraph 
4(f) including the street address, city and county, and shall, within 5 working 
days, provide a notice of change of location and address.  The Contractor shall 
have 10 days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice 

Page 79 of 151



Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project 
Project No. 800-490 
Agreement

Page 4 of 9

specifying in what respects the Contractor must comply with this Paragraph 
4(f).  In the event that the Contractor fails to comply within the 10-day period, 
he or she shall, as a penalty to the state or the District, forfeit one hundred 
dollars ($100) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until 
strict compliance is effectuated.  Upon the request of the Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, 
these penalties shall be withheld from progress payments then due.  
Responsibility for compliance with Paragraph 4(f) lies with the Contractor. 

(g) The Contractor and any subcontractors shall, when they employ any person in 
any apprenticeable craft or trade, apply to the joint apprenticeship committee 
administering the apprenticeship standards of the craft or trade in the area of the 
construction site for a certificate approving the Contractor or subcontractor under the 
apprenticeship standards for the employment and training of apprentices in the area or 
industry affected; and shall comply with all other requirements of Section 1777.5 of the 
California Labor Code.  The responsibility of compliance with California Labor Code 
Section 1777.5 during the performance of this contract rests with the Contractor.  
Pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1777.7, in the event the Contractor willfully 
fails to comply with the provisions of California Labor Code Section 1777.5, the 
Contractor shall be denied the right to bid on any public works contract for up to three (3) 
years from the date noncompliance is determined and be assessed civil penalties. 

(h) In accordance with the provisions of Article 5, Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 
(commencing with Section 1860), and Chapter 4, Part 1, Division 4 (commencing with 
Section 3700) of the California Labor Code, the Contractor is required to secure the 
payment of compensation to its employees and for that purpose obtain and keep in 
effect adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance.  If the Contractor, in the sole 
discretion of the District satisfies the District of the responsibility and capacity under the 
applicable Workers' Compensation Laws, if any, to act as self-insurer, the Contractor 
may so act, and in such case, the insurance required by this paragraph need not be 
provided.

The Contractor is advised of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor 
Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that 
Code and shall comply with such provisions and have Employer’s Liability limits of 
$1,000,000 per accident before commencing the performance of the work of this 
Contract.

The Notice to Proceed with the Work under this Contract will not be issued, and the 
Contractor shall not commence work, until the Contractor submits written evidence that it 
has obtained full Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage for all persons whom it 
employs or may employ in carrying out the work under this Contract.  This insurance 
shall be in accordance with the requirements of the most current and applicable state 
Workers' Compensation Insurance Laws.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 
1861 of the California Labor Code, the Contractor in signing this agreement certifies to 
the District as true the following statement:  "I am aware of the provisions of Section 

Page 80 of 151



Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project 
Project No. 800-490 
Agreement

Page 5 of 9

3700 of the Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured against liability for 
Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions 
of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance 
of the work of this contract." 

A subcontractor is not allowed to commence work on the project until verification of 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage has been obtained and verified by the 
Contractor and submitted to the Construction Manager for the District’s review and 
records.

(i) In accordance with the provisions of Section 1727 of the California Labor Code, 
the District, before making payment to the Contractor of money due under a contract for 
public works, shall withhold and retain therefrom all wages and penalties which have 
been forfeited pursuant to any stipulation in the contract, and the terms of Chapter 1, 
Part 7, Division 2 of the California Labor Code (commencing with Section 1720).  But no 
sum shall be withheld, retained or forfeited, except from the final payment, without a full 
investigation by either the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement or by the District. 

5. It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that should there be any 
conflict between the terms of this Agreement the instrument and the bid proposal of said 
Contractor, then this Agreement instrument shall control, and nothing herein contained shall be 
considered as an acceptance of the said terms of said proposal conflicting herewith. 

6. The Contractor agrees to provide and maintain insurance coverage, and to indemnify 
and save harmless the parties named and in the manner set forth in Section 00800-2.0, 
LIABILITY AND INSURANCE, of the Supplementary General Conditions of the Specifications. 

The duty of Contractor to indemnify and save harmless, as set forth herein, shall include a duty 
to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code; provided, however, that 
nothing herein shall be construed to require Contractor to indemnify against any responsibility or 
liability in contravention of Section 2782 of the California Civil Code. 

7. The Contractor shall diligently prosecute the work so that it shall be substantially 
completed within the time specified in Section 00800-1.1, Time Allowed for Completion.

8. Except as otherwise may be provided herein, Contractor hereby expressly guarantees 
for one (1) full year from the date of the substantial completion of the work under this agreement 
and acceptance thereof by the District, to repair or replace any part of the work performed 
hereunder which constitutes a defect resulting from the use of inferior or defective materials, 
equipment or workmanship.  If, within said period, any repairs or replacements in connection 
with the work are, in the opinion of the District, rendered necessary as the result of the use of 
inferior or defective materials, equipment or workmanship, Contractor agrees, upon receipt of 
notice from District, and without expense to District, to promptly repair or replace such material 
or workmanship and/or correct any and all defects therein.  If Contractor, after such notice, fails 
to proceed promptly to comply with the terms of this guarantee, District may perform the work 
necessary to effectuate such correction and recover the cost thereof from the Contractor and/or 

Page 81 of 151



Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project 
Project No. 800-490 
Agreement

Page 6 of 9

its sureties. 

In special circumstances where a particular item of work or equipment is placed in continuous 
service before substantial completion of the Work, the correction period for that item may start 
to run from an earlier date.  This date shall be agreed upon in writing by the Contractor and 
District on or before the item is placed in continuous service. 

Any and all other special guarantees which may be applicable to definite parts of the work under 
this agreement shall be considered as an additional guarantee and shall not reduce or limit the 
guarantee as provided by Contractor pursuant to this paragraph during the first year of the life of 
such guarantee. 

9. The Contractor shall provide, on the execution of this Agreement, a good and sufficient 
corporate surety bond in the penal sum of one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price, 
which bond shall be on the form provided by the District in Section 00610, FORM OF 
PERFORMANCE BOND, and be conditioned upon the faithful performance of all work required 
to be performed by the Contractor under this Agreement.  Said bond shall be liable for any and 
all penalties and obligations which may be incurred by Contractor under this Agreement.  The 
corporate surety bond shall be issued by a corporate surety that possesses a minimum rating 
from A. M. Best Company of A:VII and that is approved by the District.  The corporate surety 
shall be authorized to conduct business in California.  At its discretion, the District may request 
that a certified copy of the certificate of authority of the insurer issued by the Insurance 
Commissioner of the State of California be submitted by the surety to the District.  At its 
discretion, the District may also require the insurer to provide copies of its most recent annual 
statement and quarterly statement filed with the Department of Insurance pursuant to Article 10 
(commencing with Section 900) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of Division 1 of the Insurance Code. 

10. In addition to the bond required under Paragraph 9, hereof, Contractor shall furnish a 
good and sufficient corporate surety bond in the penal sum of one hundred percent (100%) of 
the Contract Price, which bond shall be on the form provided by the District in Section 00620, 
PAYMENT BOND, and conform strictly with the provisions of Sections 9550 et seq. of the Civil 
Code, and all amendments thereto.  The corporate surety bond shall be issued by a corporate 
surety that possesses a minimum rating from A. M. Best Company of A:VII and that is approved 
by the District.  The corporate surety shall be authorized to conduct business in California.  At 
its discretion, the District may request that a certified copy of the certificate of authority of the 
insurer issued by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of California be submitted by the 
surety to the District.  At its discretion, the District may also require the insurer to provide copies 
of its most recent annual statement and quarterly statement filed with the Department of 
Insurance pursuant to Article 10 (commencing with Section 900) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of 
Division 1 of the Insurance Code. 

11. The Contractor may substitute securities for the amounts retained by the District to 
ensure performance of the work in accordance with the provisions of Section 22300 of the 
Public Contract Code.

12. The Contractor shall be provided the time period specified in Section 01340-2.0, 
MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT SUBSTITUTIONS,  for submission of data substantiating a 

Page 82 of 151



Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project 
Project No. 800-490 
Agreement

Page 7 of 9

request for a substitution of an “or equal" item. 

13. As required by Section 6705 of the California Labor Code and in addition thereto, 
whenever work under the Contract involves the excavation of any trench or trenches five feet or 
more in depth, the Contractor shall submit in advance of excavations, a detailed plan showing 
the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions to be made for worker protection 
from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches.  If such plan 
varies from the shoring system standards established by the Construction Safety Orders of the 
Division of Industrial Safety in Title 8, Subchapter 4, Article 6, California Code of Regulations, 
the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer employed by the 
Contractor, and all costs therefore shall be included in the price named in the Contract for 
completion of the work as set forth in the Contract Documents.  Nothing in this Section shall be 
deemed to allow the use of a shoring, sloping, or other protective system less effective than that 
required by the Construction Safety Orders.  Nothing in this Section shall be construed to 
impose tort liability on the District, the Design Consultant, Construction Manager or any of their 
agents, consultants, or employees.  The District’s review of the Contractor’s excavation plan is 
only for general conformance to the California Construction Safety Orders. 

Prior to commencing any excavation, the Contractor shall designate in writing to the 
Construction Manager the “competent person(s)” with the authority and responsibilities 
designated in the Construction Safety Orders. 

14. In accordance with Section 7104 of the Public Contract Code, whenever any work 
involves digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than four feet below the 
surface, the provisions of Section 00700-7.2, Differing Site Conditions, shall apply. 

15. In accordance with Section 7103.5 of the Public Contract Code, the Contractor and 
subcontractors shall conform to the following requirements.  In entering into a public works 
contract or a subcontract to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to a public works 
contract, the Contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the District all rights, 
title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act 
(15 U.S.C. Section 15) or under the Cartwright Act [Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 
16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code], arising from purchases of 
goods, materials or services pursuant to this Contract or the subcontract.  Such assignment 
shall be made and become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the 
Contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties. 

16. In accordance with Section 4552 of the Government Code, the Contractor shall conform 
to the following requirements.  In submitting a bid to the District, the Contractor offers and 
agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the District all rights, title, and interest in and to 
all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Section 15) or 
under the Cartwright Act [Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of 
the Business and Professions Code], arising from purchase of goods, materials, or services by 
the Contractor for sale to the District pursuant to the bid.  Such assignment shall be made and 
become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the Contractor. 

17. Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 7100, the acceptance by the Contractor of an 

Page 83 of 151



Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project 
Project No. 800-490 
Agreement

Page 8 of 9

undisputed payment made under the terms of the Contract shall operate as, and shall be, a 
release to the District, and their duly authorized agents, from all claim of and/or liability to the 
Contractor arising by virtue of the contract related to those amounts.  Disputed contract claims 
in stated amounts may be specifically excluded by the Contractor from the operation of the 
release.

18. In accordance with California Business and Professions Code Section 7030, the 
Contractor is required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractors’ State License 
Board which has jurisdiction to investigate complaints against contractors if a complaint 
regarding a patent act or omission is filed within four years of the date of the alleged violation.  
A complaint regarding a latent act or omission pertaining to structural defects must be filed 
within 10 years of the date of the alleged violation.  Any questions concerning the Contractor 
may be referred to the Registrar, Contractors’ State License Board, P.O. Box 26000, 
Sacramento, California 95826. 

19.  INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify and 
hold harmless the District from any claims, choses in action or lawsuits, whereby any 
subcontractor, material or equipment supplier, laborer or any person who supplies work or 
materials to said work of improvement may claim damages, losses and expenses thereto 
arising out of or resulting from any claim for performance of work, including the legal defense of 
any stop notice action as well as attorney fees and costs.  District may be required to engage 
separate legal counsel from that of the Contractor should District and Contractor be both named 
as defendants, cross-defendants or other parties to any such stop notice action in District’s sole 
discretion.  Contractor shall be fully liable for any judgment or damages resulting from any claim 
for stop notice relief or other liability regarding payment for materials, supplies, labor or 
equipment under this contract.  In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this 
paragraph by an employee of Contractor, a subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by them for whose acts they may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 
paragraph shall not be limited in amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable 
by or for the Contractor or a subcontractor.  In all cases, indemnification shall include attorney 
fees and court costs. 

Unless arising solely out of the active negligence, gross negligence or willful misconduct of the 
District or the Design Consultant, the Contractor shall indemnity, defend and hold harmless: (1) 
the District and its Board of Directors, officers, employees, agents and representative; (ii) the 
Design Consultant and its consultants for the Work and their respective agents and employees; 
and (iii) if one is designated by the District for the work, the Construction Manager and its 
agents and employees (collectively “the Indemnified Parties”).  The Contractor’s obligations 
hereunder include indemnity, defense and hold harmless of the Indemnified Parties from and 
against any and all damages, losses, claims, demands or liabilities whether for damages, losses 
or other relief, including, without limitation attorney’s fees and costs which arise, in whole or in 
part, from the Work, the Contract Documents or the acts, omissions or other conduct of the 
Contractor or any subcontractor or any person or entity engaged by them for the Work.  The 
Contractor’s obligations under the foregoing include without limitation:  (i) injuries to or death of 
persons; (ii) damage to property; or (iii) theft or loss of property; (iv) stop notice claims asserted 
by any person or entity in connection with the Work; and (v) other losses, liabilities, damages or 
costs resulting from, in whole or part, any acts, omissions or other conduct of Contractor, any of 

Page 84 of 151



Digesters No. 1 and 3 Gas Isolation Valves Project 
Project No. 800-490 
Agreement

Page 9 of 9

Contractor’s Subcontractors, of any tier, or any other person or entity employed directly or 
indirectly by Contractor in connection with the Work and their respective agents, officers or 
employees.  If any action or proceeding, whether judicial, administrative, arbitration or 
otherwise, shall be commenced on account of any claim, demand or liability subject to 
Contractor’s obligations hereunder, and such action or proceeding names any of the 
Indemnified Parties as a party thereto, the Contractor, at its sole cost and expense, shall defend 
the District and the Design Consultant in such action or proceeding with counsel reasonably 
satisfactory to the Indemnified Parties named in such action or proceeding.  In the event that 
there shall be any judgment, award, ruling, settlement, or other relief arising out of any such 
action or proceeding to which any of the Indemnified Parties are bound by, Contractor shall pay, 
satisfy or otherwise discharge any such judgment, award, ruling, settlement or relief.  Contractor 
shall indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties from any and all liability or 
responsibility arising out of any such judgment, award, ruling, settlement or relief.  The 
Contractor’s obligations hereunder are binding upon Contractor’s Performance Bond Surety and 
these obligations shall survive notwithstanding Contractor’s completion of the Work or the 
termination of the Contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement this ________day 
of January, 2017. 

CONTRACTOR

By:     
 Joshua Twist
 President 
Address: 3600 51st Avenue, Sacramento, California 95823 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

By:    
 Anjali Lathi
 Board Secretary
Address: 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California 94587 

ATTEST:

    
  Karen W. Murphy 
 Attorney for Union Sanitary District 

Page 85 of 151



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DATE: January 17, 2017 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Derek Chiu, Assistant Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 13 - Meeting of January 23, 2017 
 Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order   

No. 1 with Carollo Engineers for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation 
Project. 

  
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement and 
Task Order No. 1 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $158,813 for the Primary Digester 
No. 3 Rehabilitation Project (Project).  Funds for the project have been budgeted in the 
Renewal and Replacement Fund. 
 
Background 
 
The District has six primary and two secondary digesters at the Alvarado Wastewater 
Treatment Plant that require periodic cleaning to remove accumulated debris and to maintain 
treatment capacity.  Primary Digester No. 3 is scheduled to be cleaned in Spring 2017 and a 
condition assessment will be performed after the cleaning is completed.  Primary Digester    
No. 3 was originally constructed in 1962 and was last taken out of service for cleaning and 
assessment in 2010.  The District plans to rehabilitate Primary Digester No. 3 before placing the 
digester back into service.   
 

Page 86 of 151



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of January 23, 2017 
Page 2 

Project Scope 
 
Staff identified the following major rehabilitation and modifications to include in the Project’s 
final design: 
 

Repair of the foam insulation on the cover of Primary Digester No. 3. 
Recoating of the interior and exterior appurtenances of Primary Digester No. 3 (i.e. 
steel dome cover, center column, mixing nozzles, piping, covers, center water seal, 
etc.). 
Installation of a lining system on the interior of Primary Digester No. 3 to stop seepage 
of sludge through the cracks in the wall. 
Repair of concrete as needed based on the condition assessment.  
Addition of new circular viewports and the removal of existing rectangular ones. 
Addition of two new side manways to Primary Digester No. 3 to permit at-grade access 
into the digester. 
Replacement of the mixing piping between Primary Digester No. 3 and Heating and 
Mixing Building No. 2. 
Replacement of overflow box piping.  Evaluate modifications to the overflow box to 
allow surface-withdrawal and transfers of less dense and floating materials and 
minimize overflows from high digester levels due to density stratification. 
Modifications to the digester gas piping on top of Primary Digester No. 3. 
Modifications to the sludge recirculation piping at Heating and Mixing Building No. 2. 
Replacement of the existing digester gas flow meters at Primary Digesters No. 1, 2, and 
3. 
Modifications to the electrical panel of the digester gas conditioning system blowers at 
the Cogeneration Building. 
Installation of new emergency lights at the Cogeneration Building, Thickener Electrical 
Building, and Heating and Mixing Building No. 1. 
Improvements to the lighting at Primary Digester No. 3 and Heating and Mixing Building 
No. 2. 
 

Request for Proposals 
 
Staff prepared and issued a request for proposals to five consultants:  Brown and Caldwell, 
Carollo Engineers, RMC Water and Environment, Water Works Engineers, and West Yost and 
Associates.  All five consultants responded with proposals.  Staff evaluated the proposals and 
selected Carollo due to their staff’s experience in designing digester rehabilitation projects. 
 

Page 87 of 151



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of January 23, 2017 
Page 3 

Design Services 
 
Carollo prepared a scope of services for the design of the Project and the fee of Task Order   
No. 1 is summarized below: 
 

Task No. Task Description Fee 

1 
Final Design – Project Management, Preparation 

of Contract Documents, and Design Submittal 
Meetings 

$144,022 

2 Bid Period Services – Attend Prebid Conference 
and Preparation of Addenda $7,763 

3 
Optional Engineering Services – Pipe Routing 

Modifications and Addition of Selected Condition 
Assessment Recommendations 

$7,028 

Total Task Order Not to Exceed Fee $158,813 
 
Task Order No. 1 includes 781 hours of effort at a total not to exceed fee of $158,813 or 10.2% 
of the preliminary construction cost estimate of $1.55 million.  For a project of this scope and 
size, staff estimated the design services to be approximately 9% to 12% of the cost estimate. 
 
The task order includes an optional task for additional design services.  Due to the limited 
space within the Heating and Mixing Building No. 2, Carollo may need to make significant 
modifications to the sludge recirculation piping beyond the initial conceptual designs provided 
by the District.  In addition, Carollo may need to include additional repairs based on the 
findings of the condition assessment that will be performed by another consultant. 
 
Carollo will complete the design of the Project by July 2017.  Staff anticipates construction to 
begin Fall 2017. 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement and 
Task Order No. 1 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $158,813 for the Primary Digester 
No. 3 Rehabilitation Project. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/DC:ks 
 
 
Attachments: Figure 1 – Site Plan 

Task Order No. 1 
Agreement 
 

Page 88 of 151



FIGURE 1  –  PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 3 REHABILITATION PROJECT

Page 89 of 151



•

•

•

•

Page 90 of 151



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Page 91 of 151



•

Page 92 of 151



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Page 93 of 151



•

•

•

Page 94 of 151



•

•

•

•

•

•

Page 95 of 151



•

•

•

•

Page 96 of 151



Page 97 of 151



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Page 98 of 151



Page 99 of 151



Page 100 of 151



Page 1 

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 3 REHABILITATION PROJECT 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
AND

CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC. 
FOR

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT MADE AS OF JANUARY ___, 2017, BETWEEN 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as District), and CAROLLO 
ENGINEERS, INC. (hereinafter referred to as Engineer). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, District intends to construct the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation 
Project (hereinafter referred to as Project), and, 

WHEREAS, District requires certain professional services in connection with the 
Project (hereinafter referred as Services); and 

WHEREAS, Engineer is qualified and prepared to provide such Services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY ENGINEER 

1.1 Specific Services and the associated scope of services, payment, 
schedule, and personnel will be defined in specific Task Order as 
mutually agreed by District and Engineer. 

1.2 All Task Orders will by reference incorporate the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement, and become formal amendments hereto. 

Page 101 of 151



Page 2 

ARTICLE 2 - COMPENSATION 

2.1 Compensation for consulting services performed under this Agreement 
shall include: 

(1) Direct labor costs, multiplied by an agreed upon fixed factor (the 
Multiplier), to compensate for fringe benefits, indirect costs, and 
profit.

(2) Non-labor direct project charge not included in the fixed factor 
and acceptable, without any markup. 

(3) Subconsultant costs, with a maximum markup of 5%. 

Definitions are as follows: 

(a) Direct labor is salaries and wages paid to personnel for time 
directly chargeable to the project.  Direct labor does not include 
the cost of Engineer’s statutory and customary benefits, such 
as sick leave, holidays, vacations, and medical and retirement 
benefits nor the cost of the time of executive and administrative 
personnel and others whose time is not identifiable to the 
project.

(b) Fringe benefits include Engineer’s statutory and customary 
benefits, such as sick leave, holidays, vacations, medical and 
retirement benefits, incentive pay, tuition, and other costs 
classified as employee benefits. 

(c) Indirect costs are allocations of costs that are not directly 
chargeable to a specific engagement and are commonly 
referred to as Engineer’s overhead.  Indirect costs include 
provisions for such things as clerical support, office space, light 
and heat, insurance, statutory and customary employee 
benefits, and the time of executive and administrative personnel 
and others whose time is not identifiable to the Project or to any 
other project.  Under no circumstances can the same labor 
costs be charged as direct labor and also appear at the same 
time as indirect costs, and vice versa. 

(d) The Multiplier is a multiplicative factor which is applied to direct 
labor costs, and compensates Engineer for fringe benefits and 
indirect costs (overhead) and profit. 

(e) Other non-labor direct project charges shall be included in the 
overhead and these charges include typical expenses as cost 

Page 102 of 151



Page 3 

of transportation and subsistence, printing and reproduction, 
computer time and programming costs, identifiable supplies, 
outside consultant’s charges, subcontracts, and charges by 
reviewing authorities.” 

Alternatively, the District and the Engineer may agree to utilize the fully-
encumbered hourly rates and fees for Services performed by the 
Engineer.  These hourly rates and fees shall be based on the Engineer’s 
rate schedule published at the time this Agreement or Task Order is 
executed and shall be attached to each applicable Task Order. 

2.2 Reimbursement for mileage shall not exceed the prevailing Internal 
Revenue Service’s standard mileage rate. 

2.3 A Cost Ceiling will be established for each Task Order which is based 
upon estimated labor-hours and cost estimates. Costs as described 
above, comprising direct labor, overhead cost, and other direct costs, 
shall be payable up to a Cost Ceiling as specified in the Task Order.  A 
Maximum Fee Ceiling, or Task Order Firm Ceiling, will also be 
established for each Task Order which includes the Cost Ceiling plus 
the Professional Fee. 

2.4 Engineer shall invoice District monthly for the actual costs incurred, and 
a pro-rated portion of the Professional Fee for work performed during 
the previous month. If the Maximum Fee Ceiling is reached, the 
Engineer will complete the agreed-upon work for the Maximum Fee 
Ceiling.  With District staff approval, labor hours may be reallocated 
within the tasks without renegotiation in such a manner so as not to 
exceed the Maximum Fee Ceiling. 

2.5 The Engineer shall provide the District with a review of the budget 
amounts when 75 percent of the Cost Ceiling for any task has been 
expended.  Engineer may request a revision in the Cost Ceiling for 
performance of this Agreement, and will relate the rationale for the 
revision to the specific basis of estimate as defined in the Scope of 
Services.  Such notification will be submitted to the District at the earliest 
possible date.  The authorized Cost Ceiling shall not be exceeded 
without written approval of the District. 

2.6 The Professional Fee will not be changed except in the case of a written 
amendment to the Agreement which alters the Scope of Services.  
District and Engineer agree to negotiate an increase or decrease in Cost 
Ceiling and Professional Fee for any change in Scope of Services 
required at any time during the term of this Agreement.  Engineer will 
not commence work on the altered Scope of Services until authorized 
by District. 

Page 103 of 151



Page 4 

2.7 Direct labor rates are subject to revision to coincide with Engineer’s 
normal salary review schedule.  Adjustments in direct labor rates shall 
not affect the firm ceiling without prior written authorization of the District. 

2.8 District shall pay Engineer in accordance with each Task Order for 
Services.

2.9 Engineer shall submit monthly statements for Services rendered.  
District will make prompt monthly payments in response to Engineer's 
monthly statements. 

ARTICLE 3 - PERIOD OF SERVICE 

3.1 Engineer's services will be performed and the specified services 
rendered and deliverables submitted within the time period or by the 
date stipulated in each Task Order. 

3.2 Engineer's services under this Agreement will be considered complete 
when the services are rendered and/or final deliverable is submitted and 
accepted by District. 

3.3 If any time period within or date by which any of the Engineer's services 
are to be completed is exceeded through no fault of Engineer, all rates, 
measures and amounts of compensation and the time for completion of 
performance shall be subject to equitable adjustment. 

ARTICLE 4 - DISTRICT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

District will do the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of 
Engineer.

4.1 Provide all criteria and full information as to District's requirements for 
the services assignment and designate in writing a person with authority 
to act on District's behalf on all matters concerning the Engineer's 
services.

4.2 Furnish to Engineer all existing studies, reports and other available data 
pertinent to the Engineer's services, obtain or authorize Engineer to 
obtain or provide additional reports and data as required, and furnish to 
Engineer services of others required for the performance of Engineer's 
services hereunder, and Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely upon 
all such information and services provided by District or others in 
performing Engineer's services under this Agreement. 

Page 104 of 151



Page 5 

4.3 Arrange for access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter upon 
public and private property as required for Engineer to perform services 
hereunder.

4.4 Perform such other functions as are indicated in each Task Order related 
to duties of District. 

4.5 Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this 
Section. 

ARTICLE 5 - STANDARD OF CARE 

5.1 Engineer shall exercise the same degree of care, skill, and diligence in 
the performance of the Services as is ordinarily provided by a 
professional Engineer under similar circumstance and Engineer shall, at 
no cost to District, re-perform services which fail to satisfy the foregoing 
standard of care. 

ARTICLE 6 - OPINIONS OF COST AND SCHEDULE 

6.1 Since Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, 
equipment or services furnished by others, or over contractors', 
subcontractors' , or vendors' methods of determining prices, or over 
competitive bidding or market conditions or economic conditions, 
Engineer's cost estimate and economic analysis shall be made on the 
basis of qualification and experience as a professional engineer. 

6.2 Since Engineer has no control over the resources provided by others to 
meet contract schedules, Engineer's forecast schedules shall be made 
on the basis of qualification and experience as a professional Engineer. 

6.3 Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual 
project costs will not vary from his cost estimates or that actual 
schedules will not vary from his forecast schedules. 

ARTICLE 7 - SUBCONTRACTING 

7.1 No subcontract shall be awarded by Engineer until prior written approval 
is obtained from the District. 

Page 105 of 151



Page 6 

ARTICLE 8 - ENGINEER-ASSIGNED PERSONNEL 

8.1 Engineer shall designate in writing an individual to have immediate 
responsibility for the performance of the services and for all matters 
relating to performance under this Agreement.  Key personnel to be 
assigned by Engineer will be stipulated in each Task Order.  Substitution 
of any assigned person shall require the prior written approval of the 
District, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  If the District 
determines that a proposed substitution is not responsible or qualified to 
perform the services then, at the request of the District, Engineer shall 
substitute a qualified and responsible person. 

ARTICLE 9 - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

9.1 All work products, drawings, data, reports, files, estimate and other such 
information and materials (except proprietary computer programs, 
including source codes purchased or developed with Engineer monies) 
as may be accumulated by Engineer to complete services under this 
Agreement shall be owned by the District. 

9.2 Engineer shall retain custody of all project data and documents other 
than deliverables specified in each Task Order, but shall make access 
thereto available to the District at all reasonable times the District may 
request.  District may make and retain copies for information and 
reference.

9.3 All deliverables and other information prepared by Engineer pursuant to 
this Agreement are instruments of service in respect to this project.  
They are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by District 
or others on extensions of this Project or on any other project.  Any reuse 
without written verification or adaptation by Engineer for the specific 
purpose intended will be at District's sole risk and without liability or legal 
exposure to Engineer; and District shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Engineer against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including 
attorney's fees arising out of or resulting from such reuse.  Any such 
verification or adaptation will entitle Engineer to further compensation at 
rates to be agreed upon by District and Engineer. 

ARTICLE 10 - RECORDS OF LABOR AND COSTS 

10.1 Engineer shall maintain for all Task Orders, records of all labor and costs 
used in claims for compensation under this Agreement.  Records shall 
mean a contemporaneous record of time for personnel; a methodology 
and calculation of the Multiplier for fringe benefits and indirect costs; and 

Page 106 of 151



Page 7 

invoices, time sheets, or other factors used as a basis for determining 
other non-labor Project charges.  These records must be made available 
to the District upon reasonable notice of no more than 48 hours during 
the period of the performance of this Agreement. 

10.2 After delivery of Services (completion of Task Orders) under this 
Agreement, the Engineer's records of all costs used in claims for 
compensation under this Agreement shall be available to District's 
accountants and auditors for inspection and verification.  These records 
will be maintained by Engineer and made reasonably accessible to the 
District for a period of three (3) years after completion of Task Orders 
under this Agreement. 

10.3 Engineer agrees to cooperate and provide any and all information 
concerning the Project costs which are a factor in determining 
compensation under this Agreement as requested by the District or any 
public agency which has any part in providing financing for, or authority 
over, the Services which are provided under the Agreement. 

10.4 Failure to provide documentation or substantiation of all Project costs 
used as a factor in compensation paid under Article 2 hereof will be 
grounds for District to refuse payment of any statement submitted by the 
Engineer and for a back charge for any District funds, including interest 
from payment; or grant, matching, or other funds from agencies assisting 
District in financing the Services specified in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 11 - INSURANCE 

Engineer shall provide and maintain at all times during the performance of the 
Agreement the following insurances: 

11.1 Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for 
protection of Engineer's employees as required by law and as will protect 
Engineer from loss or damage because of personal injuries, including 
death to any of his employees. 

11.2 Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance.  Engineer agrees to 
carry a Comprehensive Automobile Liability Policy providing bodily 
injury liability.  This policy shall protect Engineer against all liability 
arising out of the use of owned or leased automobiles both passenger 
and commercial.  Automobiles, trucks, and other vehicles and 
equipment (owned, not owned, or hired, licensed or unlicensed for road 
use) shall be covered under this policy.  Limits of liability for 
Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance shall not be less than 
$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit. 

Page 107 of 151



Page 8 

11.3 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance as will protect Engineer and 
District from any and all claims for damages or personal injuries, 
including death, which may be suffered by persons, or for damages to 
or destruction to the property of others, which may arise from the 
Engineer's operations under this Agreement, which insurance shall 
name the District as additional insured.  Said insurance shall provide a 
minimum of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit coverage for personal 
injury, bodily injury, and property damage for each occurrence and 
aggregate.  Such insurance will insure Engineer and District from any 
and all claims arising from the following: 

 1. Personal injury; 
 2. Bodily injury; 
 3. Property damage; 
 4. Broad form property damage; 
 5. Independent contractors; 
 6. Blanket contractual liability. 

11.4 Engineer shall maintain a policy of professional liability insurance, 
protecting it against claims arising out of negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions of Engineer pursuant to this Agreement, in an amount of not 
less than $1,000,000.  The said policy shall cover the indemnity 
provisions under this Agreement. 

11.5 Engineer agrees to maintain such insurance at Engineer's expense in 
full force and effect in a company or companies satisfactory to the 
District.  All coverage shall remain in effect until completion of the 
Project.

11.6 Engineer will furnish the District with certificates of insurance and 
endorsements issued by Engineer's insurance carrier and 
countersigned by an authorized agent or representative of the insurance 
company.  The certificates shall show that the insurance will not be 
cancelled without at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the 
District.  The certificates for liability insurance will show that liability 
assumed under this Agreement is included.  The endorsements will 
show the District as an additional insured on Engineer’s insurance 
policies for the coverage required in Article 11 for services performed 
under this Agreement, except for workers’ compensation and 
professional liability insurance. 

11.7 Waiver of Subrogation:  Engineer hereby agrees to waive subrogation 
which any insurer of Engineer may acquire from Engineer by virtue of 
the payment of any loss.  Engineer agrees to obtain any endorsement 
that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. 

Page 108 of 151



Page 9 

The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of the District for all work performed by the 
Engineer, its employees, agents and subconsultants. 

ARTICLE 12 - LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 

12.1 Having considered the risks and potential liabilities that may exist during 
the performance of the Services, and in consideration of the promises 
included herein, District and Engineer agree to allocate such liabilities in 
accordance with this Article 12.  Words and phrases used in this Article 
shall be interpreted in accordance with customary insurance industry 
usage and practice. 

12.2 Engineer shall indemnify and save harmless the District and all of their 
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, demands, 
or causes of action of every name or nature to the extent caused by the 
negligent error, omission, or act of Engineer, its agents, servants, or 
employees in the performance of its services under this Agreement. 

12.3 In the event an action for damages is filed in which negligence is alleged 
on the part of District and Engineer, Engineer agrees to defend District.  
In the event District accepts Engineer's defense, District agrees to 
indemnify and reimburse Engineer on a pro rata basis for all expenses 
of defense and any judgment or amount paid by Engineer in resolution 
of such claim.  Such pro rata share shall be based upon a final judicial 
determination of negligence or, in the absence of such determination, by 
mutual agreement. 

12.4 Engineer shall indemnify District against legal liability for damages 
arising out of claims by Engineer's employees.  District shall indemnify 
Engineer against legal liability for damages arising out of claims by 
District's employees. 

12.5 Indemnity provisions will be incorporated into all Project contractual 
arrangements entered into by District and will protect District and 
Engineer to the same extent. 

12.6 Upon completion of all services, obligations and duties provided for in 
the Agreement, or in the event of termination of this Agreement for any 
reason, the terms and conditions of this Article shall survive. 

12.7 To the maximum extent permitted by law, Engineer’s liability for District’s 
damage will not exceed the aggregate compensation received by 
Engineer under this Agreement or the maximum amount of professional 

Page 109 of 151



Page 10 

liability insurance available at the time of any settlement or judgment, 
which ever is greater. 

ARTICLE 13 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Engineer undertakes performance of the Services as an independent contractor 
and shall be wholly responsible for the methods of performance.  District will have 
no right to supervise the methods used, but District will have the right to observe 
such performance.  Engineer shall work closely with District in performing Services 
under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 14 - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

In performance of the Services, Engineer will comply with applicable regulatory 
requirements including federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, orders, 
codes, criteria and standards.  Engineer shall procure the permits, certificates, and 
licenses necessary to allow Engineer to perform the Services.  Engineer shall not 
be responsible for procuring permits, certificates, and licenses required for any 
construction unless such responsibilities are specifically assigned to Engineer in 
Task Order. 

ARTICLE 15 - NONDISCLOSURE OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

Engineer shall consider all information provided by District and all drawings, 
reports, studies, design calculations, specifications, and other documents resulting 
from the Engineer's performance of the Services to be proprietary unless such 
information is available from public sources.  Engineer shall not publish or disclose 
proprietary information for any purpose other than the performance of the Services 
without the prior written authorization of District or in response to legal process. 

ARTICLE 16 - TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

16.1 The obligation to continue Services under this Agreement may be 
terminated by either party upon seven days written notice in the event 
of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the 
terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party. 

16.2 District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement or suspend 
performance thereof for District's convenience upon written notice to 
Engineer, and Engineer shall terminate or suspend performance of 
Services on a schedule acceptable to District.  In the event of termination 
or suspension for District's convenience, District will pay Engineer for all 

Page 110 of 151



Page 11 

services performed and costs incurred including termination or 
suspension expenses.  Upon restart of a suspended project, equitable 
adjustment shall be made to Engineer's compensation. 

ARTICLE 17 - UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES 

17.1 Neither District nor Engineer shall be considered to be in default of this 
Agreement if delays in or failure of performance shall be due to 
uncontrollable forces, the effect of which, by the exercise of reasonable 
diligence, the nonperforming party could not avoid.  The term 
"uncontrollable forces" shall mean any event which results in the 
prevention or delay of performance by a party of its obligations under 
this Agreement and which is beyond the control of the nonperforming 
party.  It includes, but is not limited to, fire, flood, earthquake, storms, 
lightening, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance, sabotage, inability to 
procure permits, licenses, or authorizations from any state, local, or 
federal agency or person for any of the supplies, materials, accesses, or 
services required to be provided by either District or Engineer under this 
Agreement, strikes, work slowdowns or other labor disturbances, and 
judicial restraint. 

17.2 Neither party shall, however, be excused from performance if 
nonperformance is due to uncontrollable forces which are removable or 
remediable, and which the nonperforming party could have, with the 
exercise of reasonable diligence, removed or remedied with reasonable 
dispatch.  The provisions of this Article shall not be interpreted or 
construed to require Engineer or District to prevent, settle, or otherwise 
avoid a strike, work slowdown, or other labor action.  The nonperforming 
party shall, within a reasonable time of being prevented or delayed from 
performance by an uncontrollable force, give written notice to the other 
party describing the circumstances and uncontrollable forces preventing 
continued performance of the obligations of this Agreement.  The 
Engineer will be allowed reasonable negotiated extension of time or 
adjustments for District initiated temporary stoppage of services. 

ARTICLE 18 - MISCELLANEOUS 

18.1 A waiver by either District or Engineer of any breach of this Agreement 
shall not be binding upon the waiving party unless such waiver is in 
writing.  In the event of a written waiver, such a waiver shall not affect 
the waiving party's rights with respect to any other or further breach. 

18.2 The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this 
Agreement, or the occurrence of any event rendering any portion or 

Page 111 of 151



Page 12 

provision of this Agreement void, shall in no way effect the validity or 
enforceability of any other portion or provision of the Agreement.  Any 
void provision shall be deemed severed from the Agreement and the 
balance of the Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the 
Agreement did not contain the particular portion or provision held to be 
void.

ARTICLE 19 - INTEGRATION AND MODIFICATION 

19.1 This Agreement (consisting of pages 1 to 14), together with all Task 
Orders executed by the undersigned, is adopted by District and 
Engineer as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the 
Agreement between District and Engineer.  This Agreement supersedes 
all prior agreements, contracts, proposals, representations, 
negotiations, letters, or other communications between the District and 
Engineer pertaining to the Services, whether written or oral. 

19.2 The Agreement may not be modified unless such modifications are 
evidenced in writing signed by both District and Engineer. 

ARTICLE 20 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

20.1 District and Engineer each binds itself and its directors, officers, 
partners, successors, executors, administrators, assigns and legal 
representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, executors, administrators, assigns, and legal 
representatives of such other party, in respect to all covenants, 
agreements, and obligations of this Agreement. 

20.2 Neither District nor Engineer shall assign, sublet, or transfer any rights 
under or interest in (including, but without limitation, monies that may 
become due or monies that are due) this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other, except to the extent that the effect of this limitation 
may be restricted by law.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in 
any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or 
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this 
Agreement.  Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent Engineer 
from employing such independent engineers, associates, and 
subcontractors as he may deem appropriate to assist him/her in the 
performance of the Services hereunder and in accordance with Article 
7.

20.3 Nothing herein shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to 
anyone other than District and Engineer. 

Page 112 of 151



Page 13 

ARTICLE 21 – INFORMATION SYSTEM SECURITY 

When the District determines this article is applicable, the Engineer shall obtain written 
approval from the District representative prior to accessing District internal systems 
through real-time computer connections.  Upon approval, the Engineer will use only in-
bound connections to accomplish a legitimate business need and a previously defined 
and approved task.  As a condition of approval, the Engineer shall: 

a) Be running a current operating system supported by the District with up-to-
date security patches applied as defined in the District COE/Non-COE 
document.

b) Have anti-virus software installed on his/her personal computer with up-to-
date virus signatures. 

c) Have personal firewall software installed and enabled on their computer. 

d) Understand and sign the District’s Electronic Equipment Use Policy, 
number 2160. 

The District reserves the right to audit the security measures in effect on Engineer’s 
connected systems without prior notice.  The District also reserves the right to 
terminate network connections immediately with all Engineer’s systems not meeting 
the above requirements. 

ARTICLE 22 – EMPLOYEE BACKGROUND CHECK 

Engineer, at no additional expense to the District, shall conduct a background 
check for each of its employees, as well as for the employees of its subconsultants 
(collectively "Consultant Employees") who will have access to District’s computer 
systems, either through on-site or remote access, or whose contract work requires 
an extended presence on the District’s premises.  The minimum background check 
process for any District consultant shall include, but not be limited to 

1. California residents: Criminal Records (County and State Criminal Felony 
and Misdemeanor 

2. Out of State residents: Federal criminal search of the National Criminal 
Database, 

The background check shall be conducted and the results submitted to the District 
prior to initial access by Consultant Employees.  If at any time, it is discovered that 
a Consultant Employee has a criminal record that includes a felony or 
misdemeanor, the Engineer is required to inform the District immediately and the 
District will assess the circumstances surrounding the conviction, time frame, 
nature, gravity, and relevancy of the conviction to the job duties, to determine 

Page 113 of 151



Page 14 

whether the Consultant Employee will be placed or remain on a District 
assignment.  The District may withhold consent at its sole discretion.  The District 
may also conduct its own criminal background check of the Consultant Employees.  
Failure of the Engineer to comply with the terms of this paragraph may result in the 
termination of its contract with the District. 

ARTICLE 23 - EXCEPTIONS 

No exceptions. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this 
Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC. 

By: ___________________________ By: _________________________ 
            Paul R. Eldredge, P.E. 
      General Manager/District Engineer 
    Name:   

    Title: ________________________ 

Date:   Date:   

 By:   

 Name:   

 Title:   

 Date:   

Page 114 of 151



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: January 17, 2017 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager / District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Chris Elliott, Associate Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14 – Meeting of January 23, 2017 
 Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with West Yost 

Associates for the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project - Phase 1 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 2 with 
West Yost Associates in the amount of $113,464 for the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project - 
Phase 1. 
 
Funds for the project have been budgeted in the Renewal and Replacement Fund. 
 
Background 
 
The District operates and maintains the transport system that consists of three pump stations 
and three lift stations and approximately 12½ miles of twin force main pipelines.  The transport 
system conveys wastewater from the Irvington and Newark drainage basins to the Alvarado 
Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
Force main facilities include 78 manholes along the pipeline alignment; please see attached 
Figures 1 and 2.  Of the 78 manholes, 46 of them provide access into the force main pipelines via 
a manway inside the manholes, and each manway is sealed with a blind flange.  At the other 32 

Page 115 of 151



Agenda Item No. 14 
Meeting of January 23, 2017 
Page 2 

manholes, appurtenances such as air release valves or blow off valves are connected to the blind 
flanges. 
 
The air release valves are located at the higher elevations of the force main pipelines to allow air 
from the pipelines to vent in order to maintain the full hydraulic capacity of the pipelines.  The 
blow off valves are located at the lower elevations of the force main pipelines to allow staff to 
drain the wastewater from the pipelines when there is a need to remove as much wastewater as 
possible, typically for a long-term outage for maintenance or construction activities.  This doesn’t 
happen very often but if there is a need to do so, staff will need to set up pumps and hoses to 
connect the blow off valves to the closest sanitary sewer manhole. 
 
Over time, the presence of groundwater and the buildup of hydrogen sulfide gas in these force 
main manholes have caused many of the manways, blind flanges, and appurtenances to become 
corroded; please see Figures 3 through 7.  This corrosion is of primary concern, as failure of any 
single element could precipitate a leak from the force main pipeline. 
 
In 2015, staff performed visual inspection inside all 78 manholes, and conducted non-destructive 
testing on elements with the worst corrosion conditions.  In 2016, staff hired Carollo Engineers 
to review the data collected during the inspections and testing and recommend a course of 
action.  Carollo recommended that repairs are necessary and that any and all corroded elements 
within the 78 manholes be rehabilitated or replaced. 
 
Request for Proposals 
 
Staff prepared a request for proposal and invited five consultants to submit a proposal for design 
services:  Brown and Caldwell, Carollo Engineers, RMC Water and Environment, Water Works 
Engineers, and West Yost Associates.  Staff received a lone proposal from West Yost Associates.  
The other consultants declined to submit proposals due to their inability to assign the appropriate 
staff to the project.  Staff reviewed West Yost Associates’ proposal and found the team to be 
qualified to provide design services for the Project. 
 
Task Order No. 1 – Pre-design 
 
On October 26, 2016, staff executed an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with West Yost 
Associates in the amount of $25,855 for the preliminary design services for the Project.  The 
purpose of the preliminary design was to compile and review all available data regarding the 
force main manholes and their corrosion conditions, prioritize all 78 manholes for repair, 
evaluate anticipated construction phasing based on known constraints, and prepare preliminary 
cost estimates.  West Yost Associates prepared a technical memorandum summarizing this 
information, and outlined a plan to accomplish all the repairs in three (3) construction phases.  
Phase 1 will address corrosion repairs on the eastern force main’s manholes. 

Page 116 of 151



Agenda Item No. 14 
Meeting of January 23, 2017 
Page 3 

Task Order No. 2 – Final Design 
 
The scope of services for Task Order No. 2 includes project management, environmental 
compliance, detailed final design including plans and specifications, and bid period services.   
 
The preliminary construction cost estimate for Phase 1 is between $500,000 and $550,000.  The 
negotiated cost proposal is $113,464.  The total not-to-exceed fee for design services represents 
approximately 21% to 23% of the Phase 1 construction cost.  Given the unique and unusual 
nature of the corrosion repairs, the environmental compliance work involved, and the relatively 
small construction cost, staff believes the fee is reasonable for a project of this scope and 
complexity.  It is anticipated that the design-to-construction cost ratio would improve in Phases 
2 and 3, since part of the design effort for Phase 1 would be applicable to the other phases. 
 
The scope of services and their respective fees are summarized as follows: 
 

Task Description of Work Fee 

1 Project Management $10,950 
2 Environmental Compliance $19,444 
3 Design $73,375 
4 Bid Period Services $9,695 
 Total Not-to-Exceed Fee $113,464 

 
      
Below is a summary of the task orders with West Yost Associates under the Project agreement: 
 

Task Order Not-to-Exceed 
Fee 

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 

District Staff 
Approval 

Task Order No. 1 $25,855 No Sami E. Ghossain 
Task Order No. 2 $113,464 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Total $139,319  
 
 
Design of the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project - Phase 1 is scheduled for completion in Spring 
2017, with construction to follow in Summer 2017. 
 
  

Page 117 of 151



Agenda Item No. 14 
Meeting of January 23, 2017 
Page 4 

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 2 with 
West Yost Associates in the amount of $113,464 for the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project - 
Phase 1. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/CE:ks 
 
 
Attachments: Figures 1-2 – Location Maps 

Figures 3-7 – Photos 
Task Order No. 2 

 

Page 118 of 151



0 2,2001,100

Scale in Feet

Figure 1

Irvington Pump Station to
Newark Pump Station

Manhole Condition Ratings
Union Sanitary District

Force Main Manhole Corrosion Repairs

La
st

 S
av

ed
: 1

2/
6/

20
16

 3
:0

6:
21

 P
M

  N
:\C

lie
nt

s\
25

6 
U

S
D

\1
4-

16
-4

8 
FM

 C
or

ro
si

on
 R

ep
ai

rs
\G

IS
\M

X
D

\F
ig

ur
e1

_C
on

di
tio

nR
at

in
gs

_S
ou

th
E

as
t.m

xd
 : 

m
ot

t

Notes:
1.  Rating 1 requires immediate attention.
2.  Rating 2 requires repair in 2-3 years.
3.  Rating 3 requires repair after 3 years or place on PM schedule.

Legend

Access Manhole

Access/Blow Off Combination

ARV

Blow Off

Rating 1

Rating 2

Rating 3

Not Inspected

Lift Station

Pump Station

Twin 33" Force Mains

Twin 39" Force Mains

229921

229901239901

249937
259937

249910

259910

249914

259914
249911

259911 249909
259909

249912

249913
249938259938 249923

249936
259936

249922
249935

259935

249933
259933

249908
259908

249921 249907
259907 249906

259906 249934

259934
249905

259905
249904

259904
249903

259903 249902

259902
249901

259901

259912

259913
249924

R
O

BER
TS

AV

CHERRY ST

BOSCELL RD

ST
EV

EN
SO

N 
BL

BLACOW
RD

CAROL AV

CENTRAL AV

M
O

W
R

Y 
AV

O
SG

O
O

D RD

THORNTON AV

SUNDALE DR

ENTERPRISE DR

AUTO MALL PW
CHRISTY ST

S
GRIMMER

BL

CUSHING
PW

W
AR

R
EN

AV
E

BOYCE RD

FR
E

M
O

N
T B

L

FARWELL DR

E
VER

G
LAD

ES
PARK

DR
ALBRAE ST

NE
W

PA
RK

MALL

CEDAR
BL

G
R

IM
M

E
R

 BL

Newark

Irvington

Boyce

Cherry

680

880

84

Page 119 of 151



0 2,0001,000

Scale in Feet

Figure 2

Newark Pump Station to
Alvarado Treatment Plant

Manhole Condition Ratings
Union Sanitary District

Force Main Manhole Corrosion Repairs

Last Saved: 12/6/2016 3:06:40 PM  N:\Clients\256 USD\14-16-48 FM Corrosion Repairs\GIS\MXD\Figure2_ConditionRatings_NorthWest.mxd : mott

Legend

Access Manhole

Access/Blow Off
Combination

ARV

Blow Off

Rating 1

Rating 2

Rating 3

Not Inspected

Lift Station

Pump Station

Alvarado Treatment
Plant

Twin 33" Force Mains

Twin 39" Force Mains

239909 229909

229938239938

229926

229908239908

229937
239937

229925239925

229906239906

229936239936

229924

229905
239905

229935239935

229904239904

229903239903

229934239934

229902239902

229922

239933 229933

229921

229901239901

249937

259937

249914

259914
249911

259911
249912

249913
249938259938

259912

259913
249924

REGENTS BL

THORNTON AV

RUSCHIN DR

DYE
R S

T

SIW
AR

D
DR

SPRUCE ST

ALVARADO BL

SYCAMORE ST

JEAN
DR

RIDGEWOOD DR

BETTENCOURT ST

CAB
EL

LO
 S

T
HALEY ST

DEC
OTO

 R
D

MAYHEWS LANDING
RD

NEWARK BL

CE
DA

R
BL

AR
D

EN
W

O
O

D
BL

LAFAYETTE
AV

ENTERPRISE DR

JA
RV

IS
 AV

CENTRAL AV

GATEWAY

BL

MARSHLANDS RD

LO
W

RY 
RD

DE
EP

 C
RE

EK
 R

D

PASEO PADRE PW

CHERRY ST

PALM

DR

DAR
W

IN

DR

EDGEWATER DR

DUMBARTON
CI

Paseo Padre

Newark

Alvarado Treatment Plant

84

84

880

Notes:
1.  Rating 1 requires immediate attention.
2.  Rating 2 requires repair in 2-3 years.
3.  Rating 3 requires repair after 3 years or place on PM schedule.

Page 120 of 151



FIGURES 3-7 (PHOTOS) 

Figures 3-7 (Photos) - Page 1 
 

Figure 3:  Manway 

 
 

Figure 4:  Blind Flange 

 
 

Page 121 of 151



FIGURES 3-7 (PHOTOS) 

Figures 3-7 (Photos) - Page 2 
 

Figure 5:  Valve 

 

Figure 6:  ARV Piping 

 

 

Page 122 of 151



FIGURES 3-7 (PHOTOS) 

Figures 3-7 (Photos) - Page 3 
 

Figure 7:  Blowoff Tube 

 

Page 123 of 151



FORCE MAIN CORROSION REPAIRS PROJECT

(USD Project No. 800-491)

TASK ORDER NO. 2 

to

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

AND

WEST YOST ASSOCIATES, INC.

FOR

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Dated October 26, 2016 

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of Task Order No. 2 is to authorize the final design and bid period 
services for Phase 1 of the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project (Project).  The 
purpose of the Project is to rehabilitate force main manholes as identified and 
prioritized during Task Order No. 1, Pre-design.  Due to force main shutdown 
constraints and concurrent projects, the repairs will be split into multiple phases,
spanning several construction seasons.  Phase 1 is anticipated to consist of repairs
to approximately 36 access, ARV, and blowoff manholes located on the east side 
of the twin force mains.

2. PROJECT COORDINATION

All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the Union Sanitary 
District’s (District’s) Project Manager, Chris Elliott. 

Page 124 of 151



Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project
Task Order No. 2
Page 2 

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The task numbers in this Scope of Services relate directly to the costs presented 
in Item 7, Payment to the Engineer, and the schedule presented in Item 8, Time of 
Completion. Deliverables to be received by the District are described in Item 4,
Deliverables. Optional tasks shown shall not be performed without authorization 
from the District.

Task 1.  Project Management

This task includes project management activities, including day-to-day 
administration, progress meetings and technical reviews.

Subtask 1.01—Project Administration.  Monitor progress of individual tasks, 
budgets, and schedule; and coordinate completion of work products.  

Subtask 1.02—Progress Meetings. Attend up to one progress meeting to 
discuss and review progress and significant action items. Engineer shall prepare 
and submit meeting agendas and minutes.

Subtask 1.03—Technical Reviews. Technical reviews shall be conducted by the 
Principal-in-Charge, Project Manager, and a senior staff member not directly 
involved in the project.

Task 2. Environmental Compliance

The pre-design technical memorandum identified 13 manholes where 
rehabilitation activities may trigger the need for additional CEQA review and 
permitting from the resource agencies.  This task includes further environmental 
evaluation for those 13 manhole locations to clarify and confirm any needed CEQA 
review and permitting requirements.  This task does not include preparing an 
IS/MND or obtaining permits from the resource agencies. Such activities may be 
addressed later under an amendment should they be necessary.

Subtask 2.01—Biological Resource Update. In order to initially evaluate the 
manhole locations for potential biological issues, an analysis of current special-
status species shall be conducted by Engineer’s subconsultant to determine the 
types of species that have the potential for presence at work sites.  This information 
is useful in determining specific potential impacts to biological resources and 
making detailed recommendations for reducing or avoiding impacts.  This work 
shall be conducted by a biologist prior to the field reconnaissance, and shall 
include full species list updating and review along with GIS map preparation.

Page 125 of 151



Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project
Task Order No. 2
Page 3 

Subtask 2.02—Meeting/Field Reconnaissance. This subtask involves a one-
day effort for a meeting at the District’s office to review the project followed by a 
site reconnaissance of the 13 manhole locations attended by District staff and the 
project team.  Access and probable rehabilitation activities at each location shall 
be reviewed.  The CEQA, biological, and permitting issues at each site shall be 
evaluated.  Details at each site shall be noted and photographs shall be taken.

Subtask 2.03—Report Preparation. Engineer’s subconsultant shall prepare a 
CEQA Compliance and Biological Resources Evaluation Report.  The report shall 
provide recommendations for CEQA compliance for the 13 manhole locations and 
shall identify which locations would have permitting requirements from the 
resource agencies.  The report shall provide details for each work site including a 
description of existing conditions, the types of special-status species that have 
potential for being present, potential impacts to resources that could occur during 
construction, and recommendations for avoiding or reducing those potential 
impacts.  A similar evaluation shall be conducted for sensitive habitat types such 
as wetlands or riparian areas.  Regulatory permitting shall be addressed for each 
work site.  The report shall be supported by species lists, maps, and photographs.  
A draft report shall be prepared for the District to review, and the final report shall 
incorporate the review comments received.

Task 3.  Design

This task includes services for permitting, field investigations, and preparing bid 
documents and cost estimates for the Project.  Six sets of plans and specifications 
shall be submitted to the District for review at the 75 and 90 percent completion 
levels, and one set shall be submitted at the 100 percent completion level.
Engineer shall address all comments in writing and submit one set of the final bid 
documents to the District for printing, bid advertisement, and distribution.  

Subtask 3.01—Agency Coordination & Permitting.  Engineer shall coordinate 
with various stakeholders including the City of Fremont, the City of Newark, the 
City of Union City, Alameda County Flood Control & Water Conservation District 
(ACFC&WCD), Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR), and private property owners.
Engineer shall identify the necessary requirements for obtaining encroachment 
permits, right of entry agreements, and construction access.  The District will pay 
for permitting fees and prepare right of entry agreements with private property 
owners.

Assumptions:

Engineer shall prepare an ACFC&WCD encroachment permit application 
for District signature.  

Page 126 of 151



Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project
Task Order No. 2
Page 4 

Engineer shall complete a UPRR right of entry permit application on behalf 
of the District. 
It is anticipated that no temporary construction easements will have to be 
obtained since the force main alignment is entirely within existing 
permanent easements.
Engineer shall coordinate with up to four (4) private property owners to 
identify requirements for construction access and right of entry agreements.

Subtask 3.02—CAM-17 Metals Testing of Manholes. Engineer’s subconsultant
shall conduct confined space entry of three (3) manholes to collect coating 
samples to analyze for CAM-17 Metals. One-half day of field investigations is
anticipated. It is assumed that District staff will coordinate and assist with opening 
manholes and dewatering. Subconsultant shall provide a brief letter report 
summarizing the findings.
  
Subtask 3.03—Design Drawings. Drawings shall be prepared using AutoCAD 
conforming to the District’s digital submittal guidelines.  The design shall include 
appropriately scaled plans and details.  It is assumed that approximately 10
drawing sheets will be prepared. 

The Engineer shall create a drawing sheet(s) with a schedule or matrix that lists 
the manholes to be repaired, gives their descriptive or colloquial name for ease of 
future discussions, indicates which repair detail in the plans is applicable, includes 
any other pertinent information regarding the scope of work, and is organized to 
correspond with an adjacent overview map.

Subtask 3.04—Specifications. Specifications shall be prepared in Microsoft 
Word format.  Engineer shall prepare bidding and contract requirements (Division 
00), general requirements (Division 01), technical specifications (Division 02), and 
appendices in CSI format and based on District Standards.  Engineer’s 
subconsultant shall prepare the technical specifications for Concrete Chemical 
Injection Grouts and High Performance Coatings.  District will provide boilerplate 
front end specifications in Microsoft Word Format.  

Subtask 3.05—Construction Cost Estimate. Engineer shall develop a 
construction cost estimate at the 75, 90, and 100 percent design completion levels.

Task 4.  Bid Period Services

The purpose of this task is to assist the District during the bidding phase of the 
Project.  The District will advertise and distribute bid documents.

Page 127 of 151



Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project
Task Order No. 2
Page 5 

Subtask 4.01—Pre-bid Meeting, Bidder Inquiries, and Bid Evaluation.  
Engineer shall attend one pre-bid meeting, attend one site walk, and prepare 
meeting minutes for distribution.  Engineer shall answer bidders’ technical 
questions during the bid period.  Engineer shall assist the District in bid evaluation.

Subtask 4.02—Addenda.  Engineer shall prepare up to two addenda to be 
distributed by the District during the bid period.

Subtask 4.03—Conformed Documents. Engineer shall prepare conformed 
plans and specifications incorporating all addenda items.

4. DELIVERABLES

Project deliverables and their respective digital file formats are listed below:

Meeting agendas (Microsoft Word) and minutes (Adobe PDF). 
Draft (Microsoft Word) and final (Adobe PDF) CEQA Compliance and 
Biological Resources Evaluation Report. 
ACFC&WCD encroachment permit application, UPRR right of entry 
permit application, and other permitting documents as necessary.
Six sets of draft plans and specifications at the 75 and 90 percent 
completion levels.
One set of plans and specifications at the 100 percent completion level
(Adobe PDF).
One set of final bid documents (Adobe PDF). 
Cost estimates at the 75, 90, and 100 percent completion levels (Adobe 
PDF). 
Drawing files in AutoCAD 2016 format submitted on a DVD or via FT site. 
Addenda (Microsoft Word and Adobe PDF), pre-bid meeting minutes 
(Adobe PDF), and email documentation of phone conversations with 
bidders.

5. NOT USED

6. NOT USED

7. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER

Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the Agreement, shall 
be on a time and materials cost basis for services provided, and shall be in 
accordance with the Billing Rate Schedule contained in Exhibit A (updated 
annually) except that subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 5%, outside 
services will be billed at actual cost, and mileage will be billed at the prevailing IRS 

Page 128 of 151



Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project
Task Order No. 2
Page 6 

standard mileage rate.  The billing rate schedule is comparable to a multiplier of 
3.22 and a profit of 12.4 percent; the not-to-exceed amount shall be $112,729.  A 
summary of the anticipated distribution of cost and manpower between tasks is 
shown in Exhibit B. 

The following table summarizes the previously-executed and proposed task orders 
and amendments under the Agreement:

Task Order / 
Amendment

Not to Exceed 
Amount

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 
District Staff 

Approval

Task Order No. 1 –
Predesign $25,855 No Sami Ghossain

Task Order No. 2 –
Phase 1 Design $113,464 Yes Paul R. Eldredge

Total $139,319

8. TIME OF COMPLETION

All work defined in this Task Order shall be completed in accordance with the 
following schedule and subject to the conditions of Article 3 of the Agreement: 

Design Schedule
Milestone Date

Notice to Proceed January 23, 2017
75% Design Submittal February 10, 2017
90% Design Submittal March 17, 2017
100% Design Submittal April 7, 2017
Final Bid Documents April 14, 2017

9. KEY PERSONNEL

Engineering personnel assigned to this Task Order No. 2 are as follows:

Role Key Personnel

Principal-in-Charge John D. Goodwin
Project Manager Thea Durbin

Page 129 of 151



Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project
Task Order No. 2
Page 7 

Project Engineer David Pezzini
Environmental Permitting Paul Scheidegger, Scheidegger & Associates

Corrosion Control Engineer Manny Najar, V&A Consulting

Key personnel shall not be changed except in accordance with Article 8 of the 
Agreement.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task 
Order No. 2 as of January _____, 2017 and therewith incorporate it as part of the 
Agreement.

DISTRICT ENGINEER

Union Sanitary District West Yost Associates

By: ________________________  By:    

Name: ___Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.___ Name: ___John D. Goodwin___  

Title: General Manager/District Engineer Title: _____Vice President               

Page 130 of 151



* This schedule is updated annually 

Rates-1

2017 Billing Rate Schedule
(Effective January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017) * 

 Hourly rates include Technology and Communication charges such as general and CAD computer, 
software, telephone, routine in-house copies/prints, postage, miscellaneous supplies, and other 
incidental project expenses. 

 Outside Services such as vendor reproductions, prints, shipping, and major West Yost reproduction 
efforts, as well as Engineering Supplies, Travel, etc. will be billed at actual cost. 

 Mileage will be billed at the current Federal Rate and Travel will be billed at cost.
 Subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 5%.
 Expert witness, research, technical review, analysis, preparation and meetings billed at 150% of 

standard hourly rates. Expert witness testimony and depositions billed at 200% of standard hourly 
rates.

 A Finance Charge of 1.5% per month (an Annual Rate of 18%) on the unpaid balance will be added to 
invoice amounts if not paid within 45 days from the date of the invoice.

POSITIONS LABOR CHARGES 
(DOLLARS PER HR) 

ENGINEERING

Principal/Vice President $273
Engineering/Scientist/Geologist Manager I / II $251 / $263
Principal Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $229 / $243
Senior Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $205 / $215
Associate Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $182 / $195
Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $147 / $170
Engineering Aide $83
Administrative I / II / III / IV $75 / $94 / $114 / $126
ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY

Engineering Tech Manager I / II $250 / $260
Principal Tech Specialist I / II $230 / $240
Senior Tech Specialist I / II $210 / $220
Senior GIS Analyst $200
GIS Analyst $189
Technical Specialist I / II / III / IV $130 / $150 / $170 / $190
CAD Manager $159
CAD Designer I / II $123 / $138
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

Senior Construction Manager $261
Construction Manager I / II / III / IV $159 / $170 / $182 / $227
Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage Groups 4 / 3 / 2 / 1) $138 / $153 / $170 / $177
Apprentice Inspector $125
CM Administrative I / II $68 / $91

Page 131 of 151

EXHIBIT A



* This schedule is updated annually 

Rates-2

2017 Billing Rate Schedule (continued)
(Effective January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017) *

Equipment Charges 
 

EQUIPMENT BILLING RATES 

Gas Detector $80/day
Hydrant Pressure Gage $10/day
Hydrant Pressure Recorder, Standard $40/day
Hydrant Pressure Recorder, Impulse (Transient) $55/day
Trimble GPS – Geo 7x $220/day
Vehicle $10/hour
Water Flow Probe Meter $20/day
Water Quality Multimeter $185/day
Well Sounder $30/day

Page 132 of 151



Union Sanitary District
Task Order 2 - Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project Phase 1

Exhibit B Final: 01/17/17

Sub. Sub. Costs
West Yost Associates P/VP EM/SM/GM II SE/SS/SG II AE/AS/AG I CAD II ADM IV Hours Fee V&A SCHDG Sub. Other Total

$273 $263 $215 $182 $138 $126 w/ markup Direct Costs
PROJECT: Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project - Phase 1 Goodwin McWilliams Durbin Pezzini 5%

Task 1 Project Management
1.01 Project Administration 2 8 10 2,266$         3,320$         3,486$         5,752$         

1.02 Progress Meetings 4 4 8 1,952$                     50$                2,002$         
1.03 Technical Reviews 4 8 12 3,196$                     3,196$         

Subtotal, Task 1 (hours) 10 8 12 0 0 0 30

Subtotal, Task 1 ($) 2,730$         2,104$         2,580$                                             7,414$         3,320$                     3,486$         50$                10,950$       

Task 2 Environmental Compliance
2.01 Environmental Compliance 8 8 16 3,904$         14,800$       15,540$       19,444$       

Subtotal, Task 2 (hours) 8 0 8 0 0 0 16

Subtotal, Task 2 ($) 2,184$                     1,720$                                             3,904$                     14,800$       15,540$                     19,444$       

Task 3 Design
3.01 Agency Coordination & Permitting 24 24 4 52 10,032$                   200$              10,232$       

3.02 CAM-17 Metals Testing of Manholes 1 2 8 11 2,159$         8,586$         9,015$         50$                11,224$       

3.03 Design Drawings 8 10 44 64 126 21,174$                   250$              21,424$       

3.04 Specifications 8 24 20 20 72 13,504$       13,218$       13,879$       250$              27,633$       
3.05 Construction Cost Estimate 2 4 8 14 2,862$                     2,862$         

Subtotal, Task 3 (hours) 19 0 64 104 64 24 275

Subtotal, Task 3 ($) 5,187$                     13,760$       18,928$       8,832$         3,024$         49,731$       21,804$                   22,894$       750$              73,375$       

Task 4 Bid Period Services
4.01 Pre-bid Meeting, Bidder Inquiries, Bid Evaluation 2 8 8 18 3,722$         1,856$         1,949$         50$                5,721$         
4.02 Addenda 2 8 8 2 20 3,974$                     3,974$         

Subtotal, Task 4 (hours) 4 0 16 16 0 2 38

Subtotal, Task 4 ($) 1,092$                     3,440$         2,912$                     252$            7,696$         1,856$                     1,949$         50$                9,695$         

TOTAL (hours) 41 8 100 120 64 26 359

TOTAL ($) 11,193$       2,104$         21,500$       21,840$       8,832$         3,276$         68,745$       26,980$       14,800$       43,869$       850$              113,464$     

Labor

Page 133 of 151



Page 134 of 151



Page 135 of 151



Page 136 of 151



Page 137 of 151



Page 138 of 151



Page 139 of 151



Page 140 of 151



Page 141 of 151



Page 142 of 151



Page 143 of 151



Page 144 of 151



Page 145 of 151



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney

DATE: January 23, 2017 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 16 - Meeting of January 23, 2017 
 Information Item:  Collection Services Preventative Evaluation Report 
  
Recommendation 
 
Information only. 
 
Background 

The District’s preventative maintenance program for the collection system currently utilizes a 
72 month schedule. Essentially, the District’s entire gravity system is cleaned and inspected 
every 72 months. The District have been utilizing this schedule for over 30 years. Although this 
schedule has met the needs of the District over the years, staff concluded that it was time to 
either confirm that the 72 month schedule was still desirable or if an alternate schedule and 
technologies should be further evaluated. The 72 month program has worked well for us as 
reflected in our spill rate compared to other agencies throughout the state (see figure 3 
below).  
 
Over the 30 years the District has accumulated sufficient data and history to better understand 
how the collection system performs. Staff has identified problematic areas of the system and 
have placed those on a more aggressive inspection and cleaning schedule or repaired the cause 
of the problem when possible. This includes the areas that are more susceptible to root issues 
than others. 
 
 

Page 146 of 151



 
 
As the Districts system has aged, staff has noticed a significant increase in the number of both 
open trench and trenchless repairs identified during the inspection process. Staff has also 
observed a dramatic increase in the District’s Root Control Program. The District’s Root Control 
Program has grown over 250% over the last 10 years. This increase in repairs and root growth 
has resulted in a significant back log in construction, root control, and inspection work. The 
District retained West Yost and Associates to assist in the evaluation of the District’s collections 
system, inspection and maintenance schedules, and evaluation of new technologies (cleaning 
and inspection equipment) as well as provide recommendations to optimize the Districts 
current resources. West Yoast performed a risk assessment calculation on each individual 
sewer main. This risk assessment evaluated the likelihood and consequence of a sewer failure. 
For this assessment a sewer failure is considered to be an event that could result in a sanitary 
sewer overflow (SSO).  A sewer line with a high likelihood of failure would have a history of 
maintenance issues (i.e. grease, roots, etc.), structural Issues (i.e. cracks, offsets, sags, etc.) or 
hydraulic capacity issues (i.e. surcharging). A sewer line with a high consequence of failure 
would be a line with the potential for high spill volume (i.e. trunk line), significant environment 
impact (adjacent to waters of the state) significant public exposure (i.e. school, parks, and 
public transit). Each of these categories were assigned a metric and a score was assigned to 
each of the District’s lines. Each line then was placed into 5 different risk categories.  The 5 
categories are: 
 

Low Risk (A) 
Medium Low Risk (B) 
Medium Risk (C) 
Medium Risk (D) 
High Risk (E) 
 

Page 147 of 151



Over 60 percent of the District’s system is classified as Low to Medium Low Risk (475.2 miles). 
On the other end of the spectrum, 7.6 percent (59.8 miles) is classified as Medium High to High 
Risk. 
 

Table 9. Risk Assessment Results

 
Because the majority of the District’s lines are in the low to medium risk categories, staff has 
increased their preventative maintenance schedule to 84 months.  
 
This schedule increase is part of a two year pilot project. We will continue to monitor the lines 
in the pilot project to assure the increased maintenance schedule has no adverse impacts to 
our customers or spill rate. If the pilot is successful, staff will evaluate another schedule 
increase based on the studies of the original pilot. 
  
We will continue the aggressive cleaning and inspection schedule the problematic lines are on; 
staff will also monitor those lines in the medium high to high risk categories.  
 
This increased maintenance cycle will allow us to redirect some of our resources to focus on 
lowering our repair back log, maintain the District’s increasing root control program, and other 
tasks such as manhole and easement maintenance. 
 
Staff also tasked West Yoast with the Comparison of Emerging Sewer Inspection Technologies. 
Some of the data provided by West Yost included: the use of an Autonomous CCTC Unit, CCTV 
w/Laser/Sonar, Pipe Penetrating Radar (PPR), and Acoustic Blockage Detection. 
 
Collection Services is currently evaluating the use technologies for cost effectiveness and how 
they may fit in our daily operations. 
 

Page 148 of 151



News | January 10, 2017  

Research From The AGU Fall Meeting: 
Groundwater Resources Around The World Could 
Be Depleted By 2050s
Human consumption could deplete groundwater in parts of India, southern Europe and 
the U.S. in the coming decades, according to new research presented here today.

New modeling of the world’s groundwater levels finds aquifers — the soil or porous 
rocks that hold groundwater — in the Upper Ganges Basin area of India, southern Spain 
and Italy could be depleted between 2040 and 2060.

In the U.S., aquifers in California’s Central Valley, Tulare Basin and southern San 
Joaquin Valley, could be depleted within the 2030s. Aquifers in the southern High 
Plains, which supply groundwater to parts of Texas, Oklahoma and New Mexico, could 
reach their limits between the 2050s and 2070s, according to the new research.

By 2050, as many as 1.8 billion people could live in areas where groundwater levels are 
fully or nearly depleted because of excessive pumping of groundwater for drinking and 
agriculture, according to Inge de Graaf, a hydrologist at the Colorado School of Mines in 
Golden, Colorado.

“While many aquifers remain productive, economically exploitable groundwater is 
already unattainable or will become so in the near future, especially in intensively 
irrigated areas in the drier regions of the world,” said de Graaf, who will present the 
results of her new research today at the 2016 American Geophysical Union Fall Meeting.

Knowing the limits of groundwater resources is imperative, as billions of gallons of 
groundwater are used daily for agriculture and drinking water worldwide, said de Graaf.

Previous studies used satellite data to show that several of the world’s largest aquifers 
were nearing depletion. But this method can’t be used to measure aquifer depletion on a 
smaller, regional scale, according to de Graaf.

In the new research, de Graaf and colleagues from Utrecht University in the Netherlands 
used new data on aquifer structure, water withdrawals, and interactions between 
groundwater and surrounding water to simulate groundwater depletion and recovery on 
a regional scale.

Page 149 of 151



The research team used their model to forecast when and where aquifers around the 
world may reach their limits, or when water levels drop below the reach of modern 
pumps. Limits were considered “exceeded” when groundwater levels dropped below the 
pumping threshold for two consecutive years.

The new study finds heavily irrigated regions in drier climates, such as the U.S. High 
Plains, the Indus and Ganges basins, and portions of Argentina and Australia, face the 
greatest threat of depletion.

Although the new study estimates the limits of global groundwater on a regional scale, 
scientists still lack complete data about aquifer structure and storage capacity to say 
exactly how much groundwater remains in individual aquifers, she said.

“We don’t know how much water there is, how fast we’re depleting aquifers, or how long 
we can use this resource before devastating effects take place, like drying up of wells or 
rivers,” de Graaf said.

SOURCE: American Geophysical Union
 

 

Page 150 of 151



Sinkhole stops traffic on major Orinda street 
Posted: Jan 11 2017 12:52PM PST Updated: Jan 11 2017 08:35PM PST 

ORINDA (KTVU) -- Utility crews say it will take as many as three weeks to repair a sinkhole that 
opened after the recent heavy rains washed away part of a culvert near Miner and Camino Pablo roads, 
heavily traveled roadways that lead to homes and a nearby elementary school. 

Workers spent several hours Wednesday assessing the damage caused by the sinkhole, which spans the 
entire width of Miner Road. 

Two sewer lines under the road also broke, which sent sewage into the San Pablo Creek. Apparently, the 
ground beneath the sinkhole has washed away because of the heavy rainfall that has soaked the Bay Area 
in recent days.

Chris Carpenter with Central Contra Costa Sanitary District said it is not determined if the sewer lines 
broke before or as a result of the sinkhole, but said crews quickly installed a bypass sewer line.

Todd Fierner, an inspector for the city's Public Works Department, said the road is one of five primary 
streets in the city and the sinkhole, said to be 15-feet deep, would slow traffic. 

It could have been devastating. It's big enough to swallow a whole car. It impacts a lot of residents," he 
said.

The Briones Reservoir facility serves as a source for East Bay MUD drinking water. MUD officials said 
there is no concern of any contamination to drinking water because of the amount of rain we've received 
and the amount of water in the reservoir. In addition, all water is treated in a 7-step process.  

Orinda City Manager Janet Keeter said utilities would not be affected by the road closure and repairs, 
only the day to day traffic near Miner Road.

“We would appreciate the public’s patience as we work through this project,” Keeter said. “This is an 
unusual event. We are putting together what we consider a long term plan for the fix.” 

Residents say soaking rains flooded the intersection of Miner and Camino Lenada roads. 

Said Jana Raines, who lives in the area: "The water was maybe 75 feet wide. It was just a lake."

She said the sinkhole wasn't noticeable until the water receded Wednesday morning. Firefighters 
responding to a call also noticed the sinkhole and stopped to assess the situation. 

"There were  coming to check on the neighbors," Raines said. "It could have been a lot worse." 

By KTVU reporter Allie Rasmus. 

Page 151 of 151


